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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

| am pleased to present to shareholders the financial results of
Simsen International Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 30 April
2008.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year under review, the Group recorded a loss of
approximately HK$52,976,000 (2007: profit of HK$69,252,000)
which was mainly due to the impairment of goodwill arising from
the acquisition of Head & Shoulders Securities Limited and the
trading loss in investment securities of approximately
HK$52,952,000 and HK$83,752,000 respectively. Apart from the
above, the Group recorded gain of approximately HK$83,728,000
from its business operations. Turnover for the year under review
was approximately HK$157,335,000, compared with
HK$124,445,000 in 2007,
approximately 26%.

representing an increase of

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Securities

The securities segment comprises broking and dealing of
securities, futures and options contracts, the provision of margin
financing, advisory on asset management and insurance
consultancy services, and results of investment holding and
proprietary trading of securities. Negative revenue from the
securities segment was approximately HK$15,020,000 for the
year under review (2007: revenue of HK$109,285,000), the
substantial decrease in revenue was mainly due to the trading
loss in investment securities of approximately HK$83,752,000.
Apart from the above, the brokerage operations generated over
HK$60,000,000 fee and commission income to the Group during
the year under review, representing a 80% growth as compared
with last year operations, which was benefited from the market
sentiment.
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Bullion

The bullion segment comprises broking and dealing of bullion
contracts, which recorded a revenue and a profit of about
HK$37,883,000 and HK$27,531,000 respectively for the year
under review (2007: revenue of HK$132,000 and loss of
HK$6,666,000).

Forex

The forex segment comprises broking and dealing of forex
contracts, which recorded a revenue of about HK$49,834,000
and a profit of about HK$37,304,000 respectively for the year
under review (2007: revenue of HK$10,273,000 and profit of
HK$2,543,000). The segment’s improvement was mainly due to
the strengthened capital base which increased our financial
flexibility and operating margin in forex brokering since the
acquisition of further 50% interest in October 2006.

With the increased volatility in the financial market, the Group
expects to concentrate on its securities, bullion, forex and related
financial business in the year ahead. At the same time, the Group
will also put through plans to streamline certain operations and
to reduce its expenses in other feasible areas.

Trading

The trading segment comprises the sales and distribution of
vehicles and trading of spare parts, accessories and related
products of vehicles. The Group commenced its operation since
the second half of 2007 and recorded a revenue of
HK$79,459,000 and a profit of HK$4,703,000 for the year under
review.

It is expected that the trading segment would generate steady
income to the Group in the foreseeable future.

)

it

BoEBERESEHCRERES - WEK
FEEFEDR&EE K= RiE ML
37,883,000/ 7t 227,531,000 7T (—ZEZ
+F  WxHAB132,0008 TRERE A
6,666,000/ 7T) °

HERS

INERZEBIEINERHGENZLELERE
B oWEBROBEFTFEIRERS Y
49,834,000/ 7T 2 W %5 &% 37,304,000 T2
wmA(ZETEF - Wz /10,273,000 7T
N F) 52,543,000 70) © s ¥E15E T
Z IEEAR_ZETRNETAE—HKE
50%HEzE - e T ESE M - SAEBIMNE
R EB MBS REEENEKSG
AR S FT B ©

AR ERTIHRBTE  AEERHNRE
STRERS  BmE INEXZFRAETE
X715 - BRI - AEEKABBHETE
BEE YREMATHERNRD X -

BEE%

BHEBEHEERKHEAE  UREET
% BEHERIERBAR AEBE-TFT
TETHFRACEZED  UREBEFE
$%1579,459,000/% 7T 2 W % } 4,703,000/
TCZ 5 A e

BB S EHER A LR AR RE G RIZ
EHA ©

e (W) MEL Y

[
A
A
r\,
[
A
A
=
ﬁ
ﬁ
o




>
>
3
C
L
)
o)
©
s)
3
N
o
o]
<
~
N
o
S
s

pajiwi uonesodio) [eUOIIRUISIU| UBSWIS
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Corporate and Others

The corporate and others segment comprises loan financing,
entertainment business, the provision of management and
consultancy services, mining operations, and other services
together with corporate income and expense items. Revenue
generated from corporate and others segment was
HK$5,229,000 for the year under review as compared with
HK$4,755,000 in 2007, representing an increase of 10%. The
loss for the year amounted to HK$9,093,000 (2007: loss of
HK$3,350,000).

The Group will continue to review and monitor the performance
of the corporate and other business so that appropriate business

re-arrangement and restructuring could be planned for the
benefits of the Group.

APPRECIATION

| wish to express my sincere appreciation to all the staff of the
Group for their continuing dedication and the enduring support.

Haywood Cheung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 August 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWLR D

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 April 2008, the Group had secured bank loans, trust
receipt loans and bank overdrafts of about HK$10,400,000,
HK$27,609,000 and HK$750,000 bearing interest at Hong Kong
dollar prime rate minus 2.4%, prime rate plus 0.5% and 4.69%
per annum and repayable in within 7 years, within 3 months and
on demand respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 April 2008, the current ratio of the Group was
approximately 198% and the net current assets were
approximately HK$262,891,000. The Group’s gearing ratio, which
was derived by dividing the aggregate amount of bank borrowings
and other interest-bearing loan by the amount of shareholder’s
equity, was approximately 9%.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 29 May 2007, the Company entered into a conditional placing
agreement to place through the placing agent, VC Brokerage
Limited, on a fully underwritten basis, 120,000,000 placing shares
at the placing price of HK$0.42 per placing share. Details of the
above placing were set out in the circular of the Company dated
5 June 2007.

On 6 March 2007, the Group entered into a conditional share
sale agreement to acquire 40% interests in Head & Shoulders
Securities Limited (“H&S”), the consideration was satisfied by
HK$3 million in cash and by the issue and allotment of
101,960,000 new shares of the Company at the issue price of
HKS$0.62 per consideration share. The Group further entered into
on 17 December 2007 a conditional acquisition agreement to
acquire the remaining 60% of the issued share capital of H&S at
a consideration of HK$90 million which were wholly satisfied by
the issue of 253,518,000 consideration shares at the issue price
of HK$0.355 per consideration share by the Company. H&S
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group upon completion
of the acquisition. H&S is a licensed corporation authorised to
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEWLE D

carry on Type 1 (dealing in securities) and, Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Details of the above transactions were set out in the
circulars of the Company dated 21 March 2007 and 22 February
2008.

On 27 September 2007, the Group subscribed for 6,400,000
shares in EFEEERERMHDER AT (“JV Company”), being
approximately 8.38% of the then entire issued share capital of
the JV Company for a consideration of approximately NT$64
million in cash. On 5 March 2008, the Group further subscribed
in cash 23,600,000 new shares of the JV Company at a
consideration of approximately NT$236 million. The Group then
holds approximately 25% of the JV Company and the JV
Company became an associated company of the Group. The JV
Company is principally engaged in property investment and
property development in Taiwan. Details of the above further
subscription of shares in the JV Company were set out in the
circular of the Company dated 13 March 2008.

CURRENCY STRUCTURE

As at 30 April 2008, the Group has the following assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency:
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Equity investments at fair value through BATEFABRERZ
profit or loss BAREE CAD 7t 15,036
Trust receipt loans ERBREER VShESH 3,540

No hedging for non-Hong Kong dollars assets or investment has
been made during the year.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 April 2008, the total bank loans and obligations under
finance leases amounted to HK$10,400,000 and HK$834,000
respectively, which were secured by the properties held by the
Group and the leased assets acquired under the finance leases.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 April 2008, the Group employed a total of about 235
employees, as compared to 160 employees in 2007. The Group
recruits and promotes individuals based on merit and their
development potentials for the positions offered. When
formulating staff remuneration and benefit policies, primary
considerations are given to their performance and prevailing salary
levels in the market. Benefits provided to the employees by the
Group include training, mandatory provident fund and medical
coverage. No share options were granted since the adoption of
the share options scheme.

Contingent Liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements, the
Group has no material contingent liabilities as at 30 April 2008.

Commitments

Save as disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements, the
Group had no commitments in respect of net open position of
bullion contracts undertaken in the ordinary course of business
existing at the balance sheet date as at 30 April 2008.

rEBEEZHER

R-ZZN\FHA=1H  RITERMEE
HAEEZEETE D 51/10,400,0007% 7T &
834,000/ 7T © ARKERE 2 WEMRE
MEMNWBECHEEEERM -

B & K #H M BUR

R-ZEZEN\FNA=1+AH  AEEERAH
#235%EE M_ZEZTLFAIEH160%
BE - ZEBRBREE 2RI KESNAT
WEBMN o EREHMIER RIBHE 1
2 o EHIF] B TH MR EBFBUERR - AKE
BEZZREECRARTSE R ZFHBK
oo REEIRE 2 EEBABES - 8TE
o REFEA - BIRMBIRESTEILIR - I
9% D AT R B AR A -

HREE

BRI TS MR 44 PT I ERE SD - AEER
“ET\FHA=THEBERNRARE -

gz

B

BTSRRI 46T BEE N R-TTEN
FOMAZ+H AEEBEENBEESY
REERFERFATAELANMELZ
AR o

e (W) MEL Y

[
A
A
r\,
[
A
AR
=
ﬁ
ﬁ}‘
;ﬂ__‘%




>
>
3
C
L
)
o)
©
s)
3
N
o
o]
<
~
N
o
S
s

.*

450 3 305 3 3
A

pajiwi uonesodio) [eUOIIRUISIU| UBSWIS

Corporate Governance Report

TERERBME

Code on Corporate Governance
Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance within a sensible framework with an
emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence. The board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The Company has complied with all the provisions under
the CG Code throughout the year ended 30 April 2008 except
the deviations from code provision C.2.1 which is explained in
the following relevant paragraph.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transaction. Having made
specific enquiry with all Directors, the Board have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 30 April 2008.
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The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of the
Company'’s business and affairs with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value, including setting and approving the Group’s
strategic direction and other important matters such as interim
and annual results, dividends, annual financial budgets, business
and operation plans etc., while delegating day-to-day operations
of the Group to the management. Besides, each member of the
Board is expected to make a full and active contribution to the
Board’s affairs and to ensure that the Board acts in the best
interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The management and control of the business of the Company
are vested in the Board. It is the duty of the Board to establish
policies, strategies and plans, and to provide leadership in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to shareholders.

The current Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities
to the operational committee of the Company. These
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions of the
Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-to-day operation
and management of the Company in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board,
formulating and monitoring the production and operation plans
and budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control systems.
The Board currently comprises of a total of 8 Directors, including
5 executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors,
whose biographies are set out on pages 23 to 26 of this annual
report.

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a
specific term and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company.
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During the year, the Board had held 10 board meetings. Individual
attendance of each Director, on a named basis, at the Board
meeting is as follows:

ESENFARBITTRESEER 58
EHFEFEER BN (REBEE)
T

No. of meeting attended

Name of Director EENA R
Executive Directors HITEF

— Mr. Haywood Cheung (Chairman) — SR{BERSLAE (/) 10
— Mr. Chan Hok Ching (Acting Managing Director) ——REB G %4 (EHEE FLLICTE) 10
— Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley - REEELE 10
— Dr. Chang Si-Chung - RiHEBE 6
— Mr. So Pak Kwai* - BRIAELE" 10
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIHTESE

— Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond - PREHR 9
— Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin -FBERLE 9
— Mr. Wong Yu Choi - B EAE 8

*

Mr. So Pak Kwai was resigned on 1 May 2008.

The Company had received annual confirmation of independence
for the year ended 30 April 2008 from the 3 independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and
concluded that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Save that Mr. Haywood Cheung and Mr. Cheung Tak Kwali,
Stanley are brothers of each another, none of the Directors has
any financial, business, family or other material/relevant

relationship with the others.
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Chairman and Acting Managing Director

The roles of the Chairman and Acting Managing Director are
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual.
Mr. Haywood Cheung, the Chairman of the Company, is
responsible for ensuring that the Board works effectively and that
all important issues are discussed in a timely manner.

Mr. Chan Hok Ching, the Acting Managing Director of the
Company, is responsible for the day-to-day operations and
conducting regular meetings with other executive Directors and
senior management, at which operational issues and financial
performance are evaluated.

Nomination of Directors

Since the full Board will be involved in the removal and
appointment of directors, the Company has not established a
nomination committee. The Board will, based on its own need,
adopt criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and
commitment when selecting and appointing directors.

During the year ended 30 April 2008, the Board approved the
appointment of Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley as an executive Director
by a written resolution.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee (including all independent non-
executive Directors) is responsible for annually reviewing the
existing remuneration policy.

The role and function of Remuneration Committee are to formulate
and review the annual remuneration policy of the Company and
then recommend to the Board and to determine the specific
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management. The objective of the remuneration policy is to
attract, retain, and motivate a high calibre team which is essential
to the success of the Group.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee had held 1 meeting.
Members of the Remuneration Committee and the attendance
of each member are as follows:

FHWEES

FHEE S (BRAABUIFNTESR)RE
FFERFBABFMEEK -

FEE S 2B ABIRI R AR R ZF
EFHMBR - ARAZEFSRELETNT
EEEFRAEEENE Z ARFMEE - F
Mz BIRTIRE - BB RAE R E
ZZER BEAKREZRNEHEESR -

BERFRBITT —REE - FME
g8

No. of meeting attended

Name of committee member ZEEREHSE IR B
— Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond (Chairman) -BREREE (£/E) 1
— Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin -REMTE 1
— Mr. Wong Yu Choi - EMMEE 1
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (including all independent non-executive
Directors) did not involve in the day-to-day management of the

Company. The duties of Audit Committee are as follows:

making recommendations on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditors and
considering the terms of such appointment;

developing and implementing policies on the engagement
of external auditors for non-audit services;

monitoring the integrity of the financial statements, annual
and interim reports and the auditors’ report to ensure that
the information presents a true and balanced assessment
of the Group’s financial position;

ensuring that management has fulfilled its duty to maintain
an effective internal control system.

During the year, the Audit Committee had held 1 meeting with

external auditors to discuss any areas of concerns during the

audits and approve the audited financial statements and

1 meeting to approve the interim financial statements. The Audit

Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in

accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance

with accounting standards. Members of the Audit Committee and

the attendance of each member are as follows:

Name of committee member ZEERE
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No. of meeting attended

HHE R B

— Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond (Chairman) -BRERTE (FE) 2
— Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin -EEMEE 2
— Mr. Wong Yu Choi - EWMMEE 2
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In addition, the members of the Audit Committee also have
meetings with the management and relevant staff of the Company
on several occasions and also have meeting with the independent
professional accountant firm appointed by the Company relating
to the internal control review matters during the year. Therefore,
the Audit Committee was actively participated in the internal
control review matters including the selection of professional
accountant firm and provide opinion to improve and strengthen
the internal control system, where necessary.

Operational Committee

Apart from the Remuneration Committee (details as disclosed
under the section headed “Remuneration Committee”) and Audit
Committee (details as disclosed under the section headed “Audit
Committee”), the Board had also established an Operational
Committee with specific terms of reference. The Operational
Committee (currently comprising 4 executive Directors namely
Mr. Haywood Cheung, Mr. Chan Hok Ching, Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai,
Stanley and Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley) is responsible for making
policy and discussing issues relating to the Company’s day-to-
day management and business.

The Operational Committee should report back to the Board on
its decisions or recommendations pursuant to its terms of
reference.

Financial Reporting

The Board, with the support of the Group’s finance department
led by the Financial Controller, is responsible for keeping proper
accounting records and the preparation of the financial statements
of the Company and the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards have
been adopted and the financial statements comply with
accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies
have also been applied consistently.
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The Board acknowledges their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim and
annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders.

The reporting responsibilities of Directors and external auditors
are further set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages
32 to 34 of this annual report.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The internal control systems are
designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and the risks to
which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement or
loss. The effectiveness of the internal control system was
discussed at least annually with the Audit Committee.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the reliability
of financial information used for business and publication. Qualified
management throughout the Group maintains and monitors the
internal control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Company has appointed an independent accounting firm to
conduct review of the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group. Due to time constraint, the review has not been
fully completed. Directors of the Company are very concerned
about the effectiveness of the internal control system and
therefore require a comprehensive review of all the operations
and control system. Certain part of the review including corporate
governance, sale operation of vehicles and certain licensed
operation was completed and review of the remaining operations
and area will be carried out in due course. In this respect, code
C.2.1 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules which require an annual
review of all material controls has not been fully complied.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 30 April 2008, fees paid to the auditors of the
Company for statutory audit service was HK$1,980,000 and for
other non-statutory audit services was HK$280,000.

Shareholder Rights

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meeting are contained in the
Bye-laws of the Company. Details of such rights to demand a
poll were included in the circular to shareholders in relation to
the holding of general meeting and explained during the
proceedings of the meetings.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure
and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance
and activities. These include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Group encourages its shareholders to attend annual general
meeting to ensure a high level of accountability and keep informed
of the Group’s strategy and goals. The Chairman of the Board
and the chairman of all the Committees, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, are available to answer
any questions from the shareholders.

On behalf of the Board
Haywood Cheung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 August 2008
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2008.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 48 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the year and up to the date of this report.

Results and dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 April 2008 and the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 35 to 178.

An interim dividend of HK$0.005 per ordinary share was paid to
the shareholders during the year. The Board does not recommend
the payment of any final dividend in respect of the year.

Summary financial information

The summary of the results, and assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements and reclassified
as appropriate, is set out on pages 179 to 180. The summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

Share capital and share options

Details in the share capital and share options of the Company
during the year are set out in notes 38 and 39 to the financial
statements.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of the
Company’s listed securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group are set out in note 40 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 39
and 40, respectively.
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Distributable reserves

At 30 April 2008, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), amounted to HK$138,230,000.

Major customers

Apart from turnover derived from trading segment, the Group’s
turnover was derived from customers whose identity are either
could not be identified or immaterial. In the year under review,
within the trading segment, the Group had one single customer
accounted for 100% of the total revenue generated from the
trading segment.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for 100% of
the Group’s purchase for the year and purchase from the largest
suppliers included therein amounted to 97 %.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s largest
customers and five largest suppliers.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Haywood Cheung (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Hok Ching (Acting Managing Director)

Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley

Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley (appointed on 1 May 2008)
Dr. Chang Si-Chung

Mr. So Pak Kwai (resigned on 1 May 2008)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin

Mr. Wong Yu Choi

All of the Directors (including independent non-executive directors)
are appointed for a specific term but subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

In accordance with bye-law no. 87(1) and (2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr. Haywood Cheung, Mr. Chan Hok Ching and
Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with bye-law no.86(2A) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley, being a director appointed by
the Board to fill the casual vacancy arising from the resignation
of Mr. So Pak Kwai with effect from 1 May 2008, will retire and,
being eligible, offers himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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Directors’ biographies
Executive Directors

Mr. Haywood CHEUNG (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 55, is the son of
Mr. Cheung Yan Lung, the Honorary Chairman of the Company,
and the brother of Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley, an executive
Director of the Company. He joined the Company in July 1997
as an Executive Director and is now the Chairman of the
Company. He has over 26 years’ experience in metals trading,
securities and futures brokerage and forex dealing in Hong Kong.
Mr. Cheung also has extensive business connections in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. He has served as the President of the
New Territories General Chamber of Commerce, and the Vice
President of the Executive and Supervisory Committee of the
Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society. Mr. Cheung is also a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company and Haywood
Shares Holding Limited, a company interested in the shares of
the Company which is discloseable under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Mr. CHAN Hok Ching (“Mr. Chan”), aged 45, joined the Group in
2002 as the general manager and has been an executive Director
and Acting Managing Director of the Company since January
2006. Mr. Chan has over 22 years’ experience in banking and
financial industry. He has served as a director of the New
Territories General Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Chan is also a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He is
responsible for the strategic planning and day-to-day
management of the Group.
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Mr. CHEUNG Tak Kwai, Stanley (“Mr. Stanley Cheung”), aged
49, is the son of Mr. Cheung Yan Lung, the Honorary Chairman
of the Company, and the brother of Mr. Haywood Cheung, the
Chairman and executive Director of the Company. He has been
the Executive Director of the Company since January 2006. Mr.
Stanley Cheung obtained a bachelor degree of Commerce from
McGill University in Canada in 1981. He has over 27 years’
experience in banking, financing, securities and futures brokerage
and forex dealing. Mr. Stanley Cheung is the responsible officer
of Lee Fung Hong (Cheung’s) Forex Dealers Limited which is a
subsidiary of the Company and is a licensed corporation to carry
out the regulated activity of leveraged foreign exchange trading.
He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries and associates
of the Company. Mr. Stanley Cheung is in charge of the provision
of financial services including securities brokerage and forex
dealing.

Mr. CHOI Chiu Fai, Stanley (“Mr. Stanley Choi”), aged 39, has
been an executive Director of the Company since May 2008.
Mr. Stanley Choi has extensive experience in financial services
and property investment. Prior to joining the Company, he was
the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of Oriental
Ginza Holdings Limited (stock code: 996), a company listed on
the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Main Board”) . He also worked for different sizable financial
groups and corporations in Hong Kong with senior position such
as Tung Tai Securities Company Limited and Sun Hung Kai &
Co. Ltd. Mr. Stanley Choi graduated from Magna Cum Laude in
Business Administration of the Wichita State University and
received a Master of Science degree from the University of lllinois,
both in the United States of America. He was awarded a
graduation certificate for successfully completing a Master degree
in law from the Law School of the Chinese People’s University.
He is also a director of two subsidiaries of the Company.
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Dr. CHANG Si-Chung (“Dr. Chang”), aged 47, has been an
executive Director of the Company since July 2003. Dr. Chang is
a well-known serial entrepreneur and industry leader in the field
of LCD components. He is also the founder of two public
companies in Taiwan, namely Helix Technology, Inc. (“Helix”) and
Sintek Photronic Corporation (“Sintek”). Prior to the founding of
Helix and Sintek, Dr. Chang was an Associate Professor at the
National Tsing Hua University and a Senior Research Chemist at
Dow Chemical Corporation in the United States of America.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Ka Ling, Edmond (“Mr. E Chan”), aged 49, has been
an independent non-executive Director of the Company since
September 2001. Mr. E Chan is a certified public accountant in
Hong Kong and a partner of Chan and Chan, a firm of certified
public accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr. E Chan is now
the independent non-executive director of Tack Hsin Holdings
Limited (stock code: 611) and Gay Giano International Group
Limited (stock code: 686), companies listed on the Main Board.

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin (“Mr. Martin Hong”), aged 58, has been
an independent non-executive Director of the Company since
November 2004. Mr. Martin Hong has been practicing as a
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong for over 32 years and is
a notary public in Hong Kong. Mr. Martin Hong is now the senior
partner of the solicitors firm of Lau, Chan & Ko Solicitors.
Mr. Martin Hong is also the Commissioner of Hong Kong Road
Safety Patrol. Mr. Martin Hong is now an independent non-
executive director of each of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8200), a company listed on the GEM Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and Fulbond Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1041) and BEP International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2326), companies listed on the Main Board.
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E—FNARABRRRIZEUIENITES ©
PRERCERDBVNESHMN XA KB
B E SR EERER RIS BATE
BN o R AAERFABMIMERLETA
RIEHEEEAR AR (RMHDMKR : 611) &
Gay Giano International Group Limited (%15
IR 1 686) L WU FFEHITESE o

BEEREL ((RERLL]) 88 B-F
EMFE+—-AE/ARRRZBUIFNTE
= FENAENEESTERAEXB=1
—F URBEBRBA - RELRR/IRS
REDNEBHERERA  TREEZELE
FHE - RAELERB DR RBEBBMAR S
ERARIEIFER LT ARESZEZERBERA
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

Mr. WONG Yu Choi (“Mr. Wong”), aged 51, has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since
November 2004. Mr. Wong is a member of the board of directors
of the New Territories General Chamber of Commerce and is
currently a Councillor of Yuen Long District Council, the Chairman
of the Committee of Tin Shui Wai North District, a member of the
board of directors of China Development and Services Fund and
a Commander of Civil Aid Service of Hong Kong. He has also
participated in various charitable institutes and organisations.

Directors’ service contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

Save as disclosed in note 47 to the financial statements, no
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its holding companies and subsidiaries
was a party during the year.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHE

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and long positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures

At 30 April 2008, the interests and long positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”))as recorded in the register kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“SEHK”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

EERESTHRAER S
MERORESTHER 2B
KR

RZZFZNFHA=1TH ARAEEI&
BITHRABRARRKEMEEE (EHR
&5 R E RG] (178 75 MEIEEAI]) XV
-E‘B)Z Betn *H?ﬁﬁx@&ﬁ%qﬂﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ

5 M HE 150 S 3621 AN AR A1 B FC
Brecgm MR - SRR BT T)\%%
EITEFRZ HREST R (MRS 2R
SARRARNEBEBMERXZMBER AR ([BAZ
Frl) 2 EmBFRMT

RRAFEBRZER

Number of issued ordinary shares of

HK$0.01 each in the Company

FEAAAERTERARIET 2 EERYAE

Interest as Interest of Approximate

beneficial controlled percentage of

owner corporation shareholding

Notes Ei# FEH Total BAER

Name of director EENE k=3 BEAER AEER k] Bt

Mr. Haywood Cheung REERAAE (a) - 356,725,127 356,725,127 32.940

Mr. Chan Hok Ching BREFLE 170,000 - 170,000 0.020

Mr. So Pak Kwai HEEEE 10,000 - 10,000 0.001

Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond BaiRiE (b) - 50,000 50,000 0.005
Notes: MizE -

(@) The shares under “Interest of controlled corporation” comprise:

(i) 310,325,127 shares held by Haywood Shares Holding
Limited, which is 99.99% owned by Mr. Haywood Cheung;
and

(i) 12,800,000 shares held by iWin Limited, which is 75%
owned by Mr. Haywood Cheung.

(b)  The shares under “Interest of controlled corporation” were owned
by Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond through his personal investment
company, E-Source Holdings Limited.

(@ [ZEHARERIR RGBS -

() REBEREAHEHFIIOO%ER L
Haywood Shares Holding LimitedFf7
#5.2310,325, 12715 : &

(i) RIEEREABERETS%EZ ZiWin
L|m|ted}5ﬁ%z12,8OO,OOOHXHXT’\ o

(o) [ZEHARER] R 2RO AREERTE
# B EFL A E 2 AIE-Source Holdings
Limitedi A °
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Report of the Directors

ESEHE

Save as disclosed above and in the Section under the heading
“Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures” below, as at
30 April 2008, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company had any interest and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the SEHK
pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or
debentures

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note
39 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
holding companies and subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

B EXRATRIETRERD SES 22
MI—EHWEEN RZZTENFHOA=F
B ARBZEFARSHTHABRERK
REIHEAREAE (E& R &7 MR R
EXVER) 2B - RO HEFTEER
BES NG ERDIEIL2HRAN AR R RE T
MERL AR RIFRETRANE
ARRA R P2 s RORA ©
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Report of the Directors
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Discloseable interests and short
positions of substantial shareholders
under the SFO

As at 30 April 2008, the following persons (other than a director
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

REFESZRAE

= R DI B T T
CEERRESBRKR

R-FEZENFHA=+H " FTIHALCFE
BARARES) RARE 2D RAEERD
REARBE S KB &G F3361FANA
RAEEMEL 2 EEIAE

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company AREEBERZEFR
Number of Approximate
shares percentage of
interested shareholding
Notes BEER Capacity BRER
Name of shareholder RREZ k3 RH#E EL) Bt
Haywood Shares Holding Limited ~ Haywood Shares Holding Limited  (a) 343,925,127 Beneficial owner 31.76%
ExEBEA
Ms. Cheung Fung Kuen, Maggie — RELEZ T (b) 321,676,000 Interest of 29.70%
controlled
corporation
et VNGIE: £
Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley EHHELE (b) 321,676,000 Interest of 29.70%
controlled
corporation
gt VNGIL: £
Lynch Qasis Inc. Lynch Qasis Inc. (b) 321,676,000 Beneficial owner 29.70%
ExEBEA
Notes: MizE -
(@) These interests are also included as interest of controlled (a) ZSEFMEREELXIEERZFSTHRA
corporation of Mr. Haywood Cheung, as disclosed under the E\Bfﬂ%ﬁ H%Hﬁfﬁ&ﬁﬁqﬂ%ﬁzm

heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above.

(b)  These 321,676,000 shares are held through Lynch Oasis Inc.,
which is owned as to 50% by each of Ms. Cheung Fung Kuen,
Maggie and Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley. Therefore, Ms. Cheung
and Mr. Choi are deemed to be interested in these shares.

(o) #%%5321,676,0000% i (7 )y @R BB 2+
12 B FH 08 5 A 5 B E B 50% 4 25 2 Lynch
Qasis Inc.¥5H » Bt - RA T RESTAR
BRERZEROPHEEEZ -
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Report of the Directors

ESEHE

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2008, there was no person
who had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Disclosures pursuant to Rule 13.22 of
the Listing Rules

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.22 of
the Listing Rules, details in respect of financial assistance given
to affiliated companies are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Corporate governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 10 to 18 of this report.
Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

Post balance sheet events

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the Group
are set out in note 51 to the financial statements.

BREXHWEEIN R-_TENFOA=T
B - NRRIRERE 75K E 555 3361%7F
BEZ B MBS E M A TR AR R
BRI 2 ELRRIRR °

Ri5 £ A 13.22% fF i
2=
1R1E F R AIE18.0205 2 REHRE - B

BTHBARVKEN ZFBHRYBRE
MFEE19 o

TSR

ARBRMNZ TBCESAE R RESH
RAFHEEI0Z18HE -
RRZABERE
RIBARNBRBARARKAISZERNRES

P& MAMEBH - ARAI&ZD25% 2B
BTRAEBEIIARRALRA -
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules, for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision
over the Group'’s financial reporting process and internal control
systems, and compliance with the relevant rules and regulations.
The audit committee comprises the three independent non-
executive directors of the Company. The Audit Committee
reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 30 April 2008.

Auditors

During the year, Ernst & Young resigned as auditors of the
Company and HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng were appointed by
the directors to fill the casual vacancy so arising. There have
been no other changes of auditors in the past three years. A
resolution for the reappointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Haywood Cheung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 August 2008
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B M AR

Bl #F & st & £ % #

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

To the shareholders of
Simsen International Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Simsen International
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to
178, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 30 April 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

31/F, Gloucester Tower B

The Lankmark IR

11 Pedder Street SITHE115K

Central BEMES

Hong Kong HERLTITREN T

BRITEER(ER)ARAF
KRR
(REREZEFMELZ FRLF])

$$?§KEWE%$?%35§1783%%%6! =
EBER)ARAR(TERR)) REKEA
(mEATERE]) 2MBHRE “‘EP’F]%E’\

“ERN\FHUA=+THZBEERRAREESR
BX  BEZAULFEGABRER HakE
HEPRNMGERERNERNAR T EZEFTH
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EEHUBHRRZEME
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EHEBRAME B2 gsHh -



Independent Auditors’ Report
B R R

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
v R EIE S

Opinion =8

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view AR A - PHEHREREAEQAFE R &
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30 2Ralk BSEER-_ZZN\FWA=+HZ
April 2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year HEAARF BEBEBHZEZB ILFEZEE
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting KIE&RE @ FAEBMBEREEL - I E
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with  ZBEB(RA RGN 2 WER FL BIRE
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng B EE TS AT

Chartered Accountants HEFFFE AT

Certified Public Accountants BN EDEED

Hong Kong, 21 August 2008 BE —EENFNAZ-+—H
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Consolidated Income Statement

ma s &

Year ended 30 April 2008 HE-—ZZN\FNA=F+HILFE

2008 2007
—EENEF ZETLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B EE FET FHET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREEXY
REVENUE WA [ 157,335 124,445
Cost of sales 5 & A AR (69,207) -
GROSS PROFIT EF 88,128 124,445
Other income E AU A 5 24,423 8,448
Administrative expenses THAX (106,614) (71,293)
Impairment on goodwill EESEE 16 (52,952) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRRZ S 42(a) 50 8,775
Gain on deemed disposal of partial %ﬁ%ﬁ?% HE—KMB
interest in a subsidiary NAE RS 2 Wam 42(b) 104 -
Impairment on accounts receivable & W BR FURVE 25 (1,239) (369)
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment of B & A A1# xS CRE)
interests in associates B E 21 (1,073) 715
Impairment on available-for-sale e 2 RERE
investments 22 (2,193) -
Other operating expenses, net Hih &M= F58 (827) (2,445)
Finance costs BEE A 7 (2,814) (2,379)
Share of profits and losses of: JEAE DA T A ]2 5 A
NEE
Jointly-controlled entities HEE S - (1,815)
Associates H@‘? ES/NE] 4,104 5
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBIAT (B51B) R 6 (50,903) 64,087
Tax %18 10 (2,073) (38)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BESEERCZEE
FROM CONTINUING (B518) s F
OPERATIONS (52,976) 64,049
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS CRIEREER
Profit for the year from discontinued B 4% IF & & 27
operations < FEREF 12 - 5,203
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE (BB wFR (52,976) 69,252
Attributable to: AT &G EG
Equity holders of the Company KRBIERMER 11 (52,875) 69,203
Minority interests D BRI (101) 49
(52,976) 69,252
DIVIDENDS BE 13
Interim HE] 4,148 -
Proposed final BEARE - 4,977
4,148 4,977

IFEE=
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Consolidated Income Statement

maElE R

Year ended 30 April 2008 HE—ZEZNFEMNA=1+HILEE

2008 2007
—gBNF  —TTH
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FET FET
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE AAFEERER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY RREL2ER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE (&8 BR
COMPANY 14
Basic R
— For (loss)/profit for the year - FE (B8 &5 (HK6.43 cents #&{l) HK11.39 cents /&l
%
§ — For (loss)/profit from continuing -BEREER
g operations (B8 & F (HK6.43 cents #Efl) HK10.54 cents #fll
H]
.
52 Diluted s
ggé _ For (loss)/profit for the year - EE (B1R),RF N/A T f N/A 73 A
S &
% E — For (loss)/profit from continuing -FEREEG
2 operations (B1R) /) NAFEA  NAFER
8




Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEREERER

30 April 2008 —ZEZN\EMA=+H

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 15 41,664 34,599
Goodwill kS 16 56,731 1,498
Other long term assets HhREEE 17 9,993 13,289
Intangible assets | EE 18 2,350 2,163
Interests in jointly-controlled entities ~ FE AT &I % 7 % 20 - -
Interests in associates iR /N] s 21 74,996 -
Available-for-sale investments AEHEZRE 22 1,979 136
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 187,713 51,685
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from a related party fEW— BB BEEANTFKIA 23 - 178
Inventories rE 24 130 130
Gold on hand FEcES - 386
Accounts receivable JE U BR 3R 25 147,260 43,792
Prepayments, deposits and ERHIE - Fe2k
other receivables HAth fE ULBR 5X 26 11,213 7,863
Equity investments at fair value EAFEFABRER
through profit or loss Z RARIGE 27 123,147 184,560
Bank trust account balances RITERARFPER 28 155,592 102,131
Pledged bank deposits EHRRITIER 29 13,613 3,594
Cash and cash equivalents RekHEFMEEE 29 79,843 67,889
530,798 410,523
Asset of a disposal group classified DB AFIELE
as held for sale 2 HNEBEREE 12 - -
Total current assets MENEEREE 530,798 410,523
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Accounts payable JERTER SR 30 221,581 134,103
Other payables and accruals HEMNRRRETER 31 12,002 8,384
Promissory note A ER 32 - 4,036
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITEE 33 29,687 1,708
Finance leases payable & R & A A 34 221 378
Tax payable JERTFR IR 3,676 10
Due to minority shareholders RAEWER 2 FIE 35 740 1,412
Total current liabilities mEEEERE 267,907 150,031
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEESE 262,891 260,492
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERABHAR
LIABILITIES 450,604 312,177
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEREEREXR

30 April 2008 —ZEZEN\FWMA=+H

2008 2007
—ZENF —ETLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FExT FHT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRIRTTIEE 33 9,072 9,894
Finance leases payable JER B E R A 34 613 664
Loan from a minority shareholder DLERRE R 35 900 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEBE 36 862 332
Provision for long service payments & HIR & B & 37 2,997 3,975
Total non-current liabilities EmBBEMES 14,444 14,865
Net assets FEE 436,160 297,312
EQUITY S
Equity attributable to equity holders 7R B 4E 25 IR
of the Company JE(E A
Issued capital B 21T 38 10,830 6,076
Reserves i 40(a) 415,520 286,249
Proposed final dividend BEARERE 13 - 4,977
Total equity attributable to equity KR AR R IE
holders of the Company i RRE 426,350 297,302
Minority interests D BRSO I 9,810 10
Total equity AR 436,160 297,312

Haywood Cheung
REER
Director

EF

Chan Hok Ching
RES

Director

EFE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

=4
mERREER
I = ﬁﬁ
Year ended 30 April 2008 HE-TEN\FHA=+HIEFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RAAEREEAELR
Currency Proposed
Issued translation final Minority
capital  Contributed General reserve Retained dividend interests Total
EE) surplus reserve HERE earnings B Total DE equity
KA E-9N-43 -REE fE REEF FHRE &t hEEs EnE
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Kk i TFin TiEn TiEn i TFiEn TFiEn Thn TFin
At 1 May 2006 RZEE/ ERA-A 6,076 5,232 950 442 215,848 3,645 232,193 226 232,419
Exchange realignment HERE - - - 658 - - 658 - 658
Total income and expense BENERTED
recognised directly in equity WARR X 4% - - - 658 - - 658 - 658
Profit for the year FEEF - - - - 69,203 - 69,203 49 69,252
Totalincome and expense for the year £E 2 WA RR T 4% - - - 658 69,203 - 69,861 49 69,910 L;]I S
Release of reserves upon disposal of i E—FLFE5 0% ﬂ
interest n a jointly-controlled entty  EZE B 2 E - - (950) (1,107) 950 - (1,107) - (1,107) ‘\ B
=
Interest in a subsidiary WELE zER - - - - - - - 10 10 A %
Disposal of interest in a subsidiary ~ (HE—EHBAE 2R - - - - - - - (275) (275) @ 5}
Final 2006 dividend “ETAERIRE - - - - - (3,645) (3,645 . 3,645) E f;
Proposed final 2007 divicend “EDLERERERE 13 - - - - (4.977) 4,977 - - - &5 al
At 30 Aprl 2007 R-EELEMA=TA 6,076 528 - M 28104 4977 297,302 10 297,312




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AEEREHR

Year ended 30 April 2008 & &

— ==

NEMB=+HIFEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARREREAARE
Currency Proposed
Issued translation final Minority
capital Share  Contributed reserve Retained dividend interests Total
28 premium surplus HERE earnings B Total DE equity
e RHEE BABE L RERN RERE @it REES EnfE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Ui T TR Tk Tk T L L Tt TR
At 1 May 2007 RZEZtERA-A 6,076 - 5,232 (UM 281,024 49717 297,302 10 297,312
Exchange realignment HERE - - - (395) - - (395) 1 (394)
@
3 Total income and expense BENERTED
% recognised directly in equity WARR X 4% - - - (395) - - (395) 1 (394)
% Loss for the year FEFE - - - - (52,875) - (52,875) (101) (52,976)
> % Totalincome and expense for the year £E 2 WA RR T 4% - - - (395) (52,875) - (53,270) (100) (53,370)
g_) o New issue of shares HEIRG 1200 48,438 - - - - 49,638 - 49,638
& g Acquisiion of subsiciaries YE-RHEAT 3,654 138,251 - - - - 141,805 4 141,809
§ §.. Disposal of interest ina subsiiary & -FINEAF 2 &S - - - - - - - 10,000 10,000
% '% Deemed disposal of partial interest B AL EHBAT
g g in a subsidiary BhEs - - - - - - - (104) (104)
8 Interim 2008 dividend ST \ERERE ik - - - - {4,148) - (&,148) . (4,148)
Final 2007 dividend ZERLERSRE 18 - - - - - (4.977) (4977) - (4.977)
At 30 April 2008 RZEZ\ERA=1A 10,830 186,689 5,232 (402" 204,001 - 426,350 9,810 436,160

ZERECEBREGAEERBERPZHEA
#415,5620,0008 L (ZEE+F ¢
286,249,000/ 7T) °

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  *
HK$415,520,000 (2007: HK$286,249,000) in the consolidated
balance sheet.




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AERERER

Year ended 30 April 2008 HE-—ZZN\FNA=F+HILFE

2008 2007
—ZENF —ETLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
[iiE=2 FHExT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM BRETH2EERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax: BRFLRT (B518) & F)
From continuing operations REFELEER (50,903) 64,087
From discontinued operations RE BRI A ETE 12 - 5,203
Adjustments for: FE
Finance costs BMEER 7 2,814 2,379
Interest income B A 5 (3,407) (2,825)
Share of profits and losses of: JEAE T AR A &
&1
Jointly-controlled entities RS Z - 2,943
Associates /N (4,104) (5)
Dividend income from listed EHIREMGBREBA
investments 5 (1,617) (402)
Depreciation e 6 4,678 4,100
Loss on disposal/write-off of items e MEME - BE R
of property, plant and equipment R BB 6 904 8
Impairment of items of property, M - BB REEHZRE
plant and equipment 6 - 18
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W 42(a) (50) (8,775)
Gain on deemed disposal of partial WA BHEKEB AT
interest in a subsidiary B0 M 2 2 W am 42(b) (104) -
Fair value loss/(gain) on equity BERFEFABRERZ
investments at fair value BRAZE 2 A FE
through profit or loss &8, (k) 70,957 (67,310)
Impairment on accounts receivable FEBER R ERARE S 1,239 369
(Write-back of provision)/provision (BefEm) /BB
for long service payments 6 (978) 1,278
Impairment on goodwill EESEAE 16 52,952 -
Impairment on available-for-sale AftEEZRERE
investments 2,193 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) Bt N RS 2 RES
of an interest in an associate CRE# ) 1,073 (715)
Gain on disposal of HEBRIELEELK 2
a jointly-controlled entity from a HEESIBE 2 W
discontinued operation 12 - (6,331)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment ~ FEEZE G| EER 2
of an interest in a jointly-controlled CRERE) /RE
entity 6 &) 2,419
75,570 (3,559)

e (W) MEL Y
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

Year ended 30 April 2008 HE—ZEZNFEMNA=1+HILEE

2008 2007
—ZENF —EELF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FExT FHT
(Increase)/decrease in equity EAFEFABEREREZ
investments at fair value BAE (Gg),w L
through profit or loss (9,544) 3,676
Increase in accounts receivable JFE U BR k38 0 (47,967) (8,911)
Decrease in loans receivable JE W E SRRk A = 17,851
Decrease in prepayments, ENHE - FTe2k
deposits and other receivables HAh & Y BR SRR 1,340 39,421
5 Increase in bank trust RITISFLER P A 8RS N
% account balances (6,757) (16,635)
% Decrease/(increase) iz zERRL 7 (35m)
2 in gold on hand 386 (18)
Z8 Decrease/(increase) in amount FEW B FEE AT IR
%g due from a related party B, () 178 (178)
(‘é §_ Increase in accounts payable JFE A5 BR FR A A0 4,887 22,855
é ,§l Decrease in other payables H b ERBRR K
§ 3 and accruals FEEt B R (4,786) (10,601)
&a Decrease in provision for long RHEIRRTS & BAE R
service payments 37 - (462)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts RAOBRREFRECRL)
due to minority shareholders 1# 40 (672) 1,147
Cash generated from REEXBIRBEE
operations 12,635 44,486
Interest received 2 W F 8 3,407 2,825
Hong Kong profits tax (B /REIBEFEH
(paid)/refunded (10) 1
Net cash inflow from KEEBRSMAFE

operating activities 16,032 47,312




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GERERER

Year ended 30 April 2008 H#E_ZTZNEMNA=1+HIEE

2008
—ZENF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FHET FHET

CASH FLOWS FROM RETH2EERE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, RNEWE - BB K&

plant and equipment (7,168) (3,675)
Investment in a jointly-controlled entity FLREIFEHI (P ERE = (4,036)
Investment in associates B2 NRIEE (87,823) -
Dividends received from listed EAREDWRE

investments 1,617 402
Dividend received from an associate KB —E#E AR Z K8 - 720
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EERT B A &) 41 27,035 (182)
Increase in other long term assets Hh R EFEEIL N (264) (604)
Acquisition of available-for-sale WA B EZIRE

investments - (136)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - BE K

property, plant and equipment BRI 373 -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries H & & A 7 F7 15 78 42(a) 751 300
Proceeds from disposal of e RS

a jointly-controlled entity Fr{S 3% 8 - 5,311
Decrease in amounts due from HEE I R FOR D

jointly-controlled entities 77 130
Advances of loans to BRNERTHRAEG B

a jointly-controlled entity - (2,250)
Net cash outflow from investing KRGS 2R ML FEE

activities (65,402) (4,020)

e (W) MEL Y
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AERERER

Year ended 30 April 2008 HE—ZEZNFEMNA=1+HILEE

2008 2007
—ZENF —ETLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FExT FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM METH2EERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New issue of shares eI G, 49,638 -
Dividends paid EfERE (9,125) (3,645)
New bank loans Al RITER 48,949 -
Repayment of bank loans EBRITER (22,542) (9,097)
Repayment of promissory note BEANEE (4,036) -
Capital element of finance lease BMEMOEE 2E RN
rental payments (381) 477)
Interest paid 2AH S 7 (2,814) (2,379)
Investment from minority shareholders 8 ix R R E 10,004 -
Loan from a minority shareholder DLERRE R 900 -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from MEEB RS
financing activities WA R d) F58 70,593 (15,598)
NET INCREASE IN CASH RERkBeESEREREZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS I E 21,223 27,694
Cash and cash equivalents REVz2HE R
at beginning of year ReFEEER 71,483 43,789
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZBEESR
AT END OF YEAR He%EEH 92,706 71,483
ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOF CASH B2 RIR&E&£ZHIER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEERZ AT
Cash and bank balances BHae MRS 29 79,843 67,889
Bank overdrafts RITEX (750) -
Time deposits with original maturity W &R 2 R E/HI H
of less than three months when DR=EAZ2EBRFR
acquired, pledged as security BEEBARITEEZ
for banking facilities A o 29 13,613 3,594
92,706 71,483




Balance Sheet

BEERER

30 April 2008 —ZEZN\EMA=+H

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M aE FE&xT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WER&E 15 - 54
Interests in subsidiaries NG o 19 367,734 51,589
Total non-current assets IERBE EMREE 367,734 51,643
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ERRIE - ek
other receivables H 4th JiE UG BR 3R 26 142 107
Cash and cash equivalents HeMRLEEIEE 29 144 120
Total current assets MENEEPE 286 227
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals H b ERBRR K
JEETE M 31 1,252 829
Total current liabilities mBBEESE 1,252 829
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEETFE (966) (602)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERREBAEE
LIABILITIES 366,768 51,041
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Provision for long service payments & HIR & B & 37 27 249
Net assets FEE 366,741 50,792
EQUITY =
Issued capital B 21T IR 38 10,830 6,076
Reserves " 40(b) 355,911 39,739
Proposed final dividend BERHRE 13 - 4,977
Total equity R 366,741 50,792

Haywood Cheung
REER
Director

EF

Chan Hok Ching
RES
Director

EFE
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR R M AT

30 April 2008

1.

=R F =Rl

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The head office and principal place of operations
of the Company is situated at 26th Floor, Top Glory Tower,
262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of
the Group are set out in note 48 to the financial statements.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for certain financial instruments,
which have been measured at fair value. Disposal groups
and non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower
of the carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell as
further explained in note 2.4. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

2.1

DA EF

ARRARD—HERBREZMKILIZE
RAR] e KRR ZHEMER LT RS
FH BN EE IR S 1T 82625
W5 R 02618 -

ARBI2EBEBR/RERR - K&
BEXEMBLARZIEEXBHBEAN
FATSERRMIREA8 ©

mREXE

MBEBRDBRBEL GG HEM
ZEEVGHREE ([ERYMHRE
R (BEAEEEMBRE LR
Faast R ([FAS£R]) k&
B) ARG EIRFE AR
Pl BEBREMBR - BFETERT
B R FEFEN - MBBRRIIRE
BEERAERRR - FHIEREZLE
BRI EERB A EAREER R FE
BMEERARE 2 BIEESIER - B
HBEHMNME2.4 - REBFHE
h - ISR TIABE T ([EB]) 2
) A BRYREEREOZT

JC ©



Notes to Financial Statements

B 35 ¥R R M AL

30 April 2008 —ZEZN\EMA=+H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 {m & E % (&)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2008.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation.

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.

This method involves allocating the cost of the business AKAOMEMKEAHRFNEE L R FE ‘@‘]1 H
combinations to the fair value of the identifiable assets AR AU B B HR AT A g 2 B8 E M4 ﬂ
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed BE WERKAURZB®AHBFMEE \\\g
at the date of acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is ERTE BBTRAIARFES :@§
measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets SAEZBEZRE - NMEWEER %%
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or RGN AFTE - g’*ﬁ

assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net
assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

REVBBRREBBEARAREHEBR
(A AKREDBEE-_TTN\FN
A=Z+THALFEZHBHREK - WERQ
Bl AT B e B B (B £R B ER
SEGRE B RAEESRIENER L
Bk IEREEARRRZERR
HREHRERGEERARFEHE -

FAKBAR 2 WEDERARE S
BN o WHIRS RIAXH A H 2K

BB AR 25 30 0N B A e
EEFRADANEL T2 LA BT
B -




Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR R M AT

30 April 2008 —ZEZEN\FWMA=+H

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED 2.2 B RBIETEBM R
HONG KONG FINANCIAL ¢$EIJZ$/ &
REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has adopted the following new and revised REBRAFEMBEIwEK B REKAA
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial I RS e = U
statements. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to %T;ET:F’%%T\%&%E%?BZEE%IEF\\ :
additional disclosures, the adoption of these new and RN BEFIE RS ET R R RS
revised standards and interpretations has had no material MIEMRIWEEATE -

effect on these financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)  Capital Disclosures ZEER B R
g %1 ﬁ)ﬁ (1&3T)
8 HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures BEEVBRE PHIE K&
z AR E 7%
§ HK(FRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives BB (R EFFHEBRANDT
>3 REREEES) £IA
59 — RBER
gg HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment %F (BB B 75 FEIR SRS K&
58 BEREBZE®) AHME
S5 — REE10%
S8 HK(FRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share 7B (R BB B HmEER]
Transactions WEREBZEE) Fow:EERK

— BB EFRmD R 5

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised B Bt g RIS IERT BB Bl E

HKFRSs are as follows: R ZEBEFEMT -

(a) HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures () BEERMBBREENETR AT

A KE

This standard requires disclosures that enable users ZAERREEL B EE - AMEM
of the financial statements to evaluate the significance WERZEAEETEAEE S/
of the Group’s financial instruments and the nature THZ2EEMURZSeI A
and extent of risks arising from those financial FrEARR IS LREE - AR
instruments. While there has been no effect on the HAREEZ M BARR I EEE
financial position or results of operations of the Group, WESZE REREHERTH
comparative information has been included/revised ZmE A MEET

where appropriate.



Notes to Financial Statements

B 35 ¥R R M AL

30 April 2008

“EEN\FHA=TH

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(b) Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial

(c)

Statements — Capital disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make
disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for managing capital.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

This interpretation requires that the date to assess
whether an embedded derivative is required to be
separated from the host contract and accounted for
as a derivative is the date that the Group first becomes
a party to the contract, with reassessment only if there
is a change to the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows. As the Group has no embedded
derivative requiring separation from the host contract,
the interpretation has had no effect on these financial
statements.

2.2 BR KB B RBYE®R

HEA

(b)

(c)

=& (&)

BRETTEAE1R BT HBHK
K225 — BFXAKE

ZIERTREARBEAELKE
DA 81 M5 il k2 (£ A & BERT S AN
SEEEEAZBR  HEKLE
o

BB (BERTERERBESES)
— REFOREHNFEHALT
£TH

ZBRE - HERARITET
HARBART A0 FANERDT
ETAMKRz HHAIAERE &R
RARRTH T Z B AWEREH
BEFENEREXERSRE
- hHBBETEMR - ARAE
B EBEEEANNFAIRAL
TETA  BZRBHEVBERR
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR R M AT

30 April 2008 —ZEZEN\FWMA=+H

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(d) HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 May
2007, which requires that an impairment loss
recognised in a previous interim period in respect of
goodwill or an investment in either an equity instrument
classified as available-for-sale or a financial asset
carried at cost is not subsequently reversed. As the
Group had no impairment losses previously reversed
in respect of such assets, the interpretation has had
no impact on the financial position or results of
operations of the Group.

(e) HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

This interpretation requires arrangements whereby an
employee is granted rights to the Group’s equity
instruments, to be accounted for as an equity-settled
scheme, even if the Group acquires the instruments
from another party, or the shareholders provide the
equity instruments needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 also
addresses the accounting for share-based payment
transactions involving two or more entities within the
Group. As the Group currently has no such
transactions, the interpretation is unlikely to have any
financial impact on the Group.

22% &ﬁ%ﬂ?%j 2|

(d & BERHBEHRERREES)

(e)

— REE10SE AU ERE R
]

AEEER_TZELFRA—A
Rz 2E - ZR2BHAE  RE
BT SRR BN EEA
R ERAR T ASRKARTIER 2
TRIBEECREMERZBIER
BEENGERD - ARAEEL
R AR E B EEEZRIEE
E e %T$$l2%%#
ML EREWBTE o

8 EBREREREZED)
— REFREFREEFRGR
=

ZREBHATE  EEEEAEER
NI BN LAY RIRAEE
HitE - BEZETATDBRASE
EEHMALTHEENHKRRIRE
ZRM - B (BB BHRERE
ZE®)REF11RAHEEY
RASEEARAMESA EEB 2R
MR G 2G5 7% - ARA
SEERITEEERS W2
T K A] B 3 2N 6 B A A A {rT B
L= o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 35 ¥R R M AL

30 April 2008 —ZEZN\EMA=+H

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
standards or interpretations that have been issued but are
not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements'

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
(Amendment)
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation'

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) ~ Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations'
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements

and their Interaction®

23 EEMEEHARER2ER

BB REE 2 RE

REEWRERBATERMERARE

2 F I8 S RAERT

%2hﬁ(§%é)
BEGHER
F32% R
BAEGER
EAVACHD)

AR BREEL
F 25 (1B3])
AR BREEL
E3% (KEE)
BRUBREEL

E85

5 (ERHH%
RERBZER)
- ZEF12%

B (BB %
BEREZE®)
—2EE135%
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EREZEY)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR R M AT

30 April 2008 —ZEZEN\FWMA=+H

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2008

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these standards or interpretations will have no material
impact on the results and financial position of the Group.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture operates
as a separate entity in which the Group and the other parties
have an interest.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 35 ¥R R M AL

30 April 2008 —ZEZN\EMA=+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24X EESTTHRUE (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

The joint venture agreement between the venturers BRECZHEFMEINL2EEHH  RE

stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture BEREANTEEIAZELRASE - A&

parties, the duration of the joint venture entity and the basis Ba o FHRABAFEEEER

on which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. ZEE - HERQ T%i’%ﬁﬁﬁ&&ﬂ”

The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations HREEZDRNIEEEE ZFE LA

and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the IIRBEEMELBRIBEEEH

venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital 7 e

contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint

venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as: BERNEHWRE

(@) asubsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly (@ MASEBEEFEEEZNXEEDS ﬂ
or indirectly, over the joint venture; flagna - AlaERaRAMN \;\] g

BAR: "=
(b) ajointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have (b) fWASEEWEmEHFEIZGE A g’*ﬁ

unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or
joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally
not less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered
capital and is in a position to exercise significant
influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less
than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and
has neither joint control of, nor is in a position to
exercise significant influence over, the joint venture.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties
having unilateral control over the economic activity of the
jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s interests in jointly-controlled entities are stated
in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its jointly-
controlled entitled are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest, in the jointly-controlled entities, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
jointly-controlled entities is included as part of the Group’s
interests in jointly-controlled entities.

When an investment in a jointly-controlled entity is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Associates (continued) BeENT (@)

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the REBRBERR 2 IIRBER

consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net SHEREEAREEER @ ZAE

assets under the equity method of accounting, less any EELhzFEEINAGRGEEARG

impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition xo RNEBEEEBEAT CWERE

results and reserves of associates is included in the BERFEHED WA GERER GRS

consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves, E -  ASBHEHABEATNRSME

respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from 7 ARERWEREE  HRAEE

transactions between the Group and its associates are REEE RNBIFTE 2 ¥ - BRIEXR

eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the PR EERERCEEEEL TR

associates, except where unrealised losses provide B WEBEATMEEZEE )

evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill RIERAEBRBE R AR — 3

arising from the acquisition of associates is included as part I ‘@‘]1 H

of the Group’s interest in associates. ?
|

The results of associates are included in the Company’s RARIRSERFIETAZBE R T% :iﬁ%

income statement to the extent of dividends received and BB W R ERREAR - AR %%

receivable. The Company’s interests in associates are REtERNR 2 R WRIEIERD ﬁ g’*ﬁ

treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less E - WIRAK AR AR E E 1B BR

any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for MR E AR 2 EW D B AFIELD
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non- € BB BB REERFESR[F

current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. EHEZIERDEEMD RIEEEE
EIANER »
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entities represents the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially measured
at cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal
of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill BEUNZHEREERE

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual 1ﬁﬂjfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘%ﬁiﬁ$ﬁ?ﬁﬁ)§ (17 ﬂ
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than 5 oRiEE BEROBEARRER \\\g
inventories, financial assets, goodwill and a disposal group EZHERRE) ETFERERR - A @§
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount St EEZ KR SR - BEEZA ﬁ%
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated WEeBNREEXRESELEENZ gﬁ

as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in
which it arises.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwiill
(continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss
is credited to the income statement in the period in which it
arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in

the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group;
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

() the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation ME - - BERREURITE ﬂ

it
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less Y% - BE R TR AR &5 @§
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When ERAEMBEERBEIER - WWE - K ﬁ%
an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as ERREBIERGIELEEXREBR S gﬁ

held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified
as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposal
groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment, and where the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset or as a replacement.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment

have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.
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ﬁ1ﬁ2?ﬁﬁ#7ﬁﬁﬁ¢ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ$§

to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The HFEHREEFE - ik s - FAERA
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows: ZE;JE%@ZEZZDT :
Leasehold land and buildings 4% or over the lease terms, REIEANEE 4% = 18 49 HA
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8
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal
group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale
must be highly probable.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than financial

assets) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower HEEHEEE (ERMEER) @ &
of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell. EIEEETE&%A?TE}@Z&%&$MI§W% Lﬁq H
N S e Qg
ZBIEEE - a3
4B
P e
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) mEEE BEBRM @i %ﬁ
o3
N N N R 12>
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either BIZEEZFERFHET T AR “ )

finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each balance sheet
date.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest
element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets RERHMESRMEE
Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as EASHEREIRFTATCZIEME

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a party
to it and assesses whether an embedded derivatives is

required to be separated from the host contract which is Ié\%’ﬂzﬁ&“@ MHE &J—W Iﬂ)ﬁ 1) 8 Lﬁq H
not measured at fair value through profit or loss when the R AZSEAESTETIARSTHEIE ﬂ
analysis shows that the economic characteristics and risks BAFEFABRERZEIZENSFAE \\\ g
of embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of B o EEANKERERERENSEE @§
the host contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is a RMEZRERBEEAAEZEEHE - ﬁ%
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies FEHEITEM - g* a

the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the
contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or losses on
investments held for trading are recognised in the income
statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
income statement does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out or “Revenue
recognition” below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through
the amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T ESTTHRME (B
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHEHMEMEE (B)
Available-for-sale financial assets AAHHEZ 2R EE
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial AEECEREENEERHE
assets in listed and unlisted equity securities that are B2 LRI ETBRAES 2 IEITE
designated as available for sale or are not classified in any CRMEEIVERBLAEMMERN 2
of the other two categories. After initial recognition, available- HEOTESREE - RERERE - A
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with gains HEEZEMEERATEINE &
or losses recognised as a separate component of equity W B EERRAER 2B LI
until the investment is derecognised or until the investment h BEEREITHEERANIRERE
is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative EARE - BN TR A
gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the Z Bt E S ET ARER o BRI
income statement. Interest and dividends earned are Z BRI E D BIAF S WA TR E LﬁiiH
reported as interest income and dividend income, WAZ2%, - WRE T XU ATER] P ﬂ
respectively and are recognised in the income statement HBERBREARNERS [ H A \\\ %
as “Other income” in accordance with the policies set out Al o REREEA 2 REBER I @§
for “Revenue recognition” below. Losses arising from the KNERBIAHREEZEREE 2R ﬁ%
impairment of such investments are recognised in the BEE]  WERAHEEZREBMH g’*ﬁ
income statement as “Impairment losses on available-for- EHRER o

sale financial assets” and are transferred from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be R (@EE M2 AT ESHE 2]
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of BMYEZEEMS DBEKX  k(b)#Z
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that HEANzSBEF2HEEMT AT
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates BEREEGEMGRER - ELEMR
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used BHEZATEEELNEGE  BH
in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost 78 75 1R B ARG (R AT R (B B 18 51 Bk

less any impairment losses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHEMEMEE (@)
Fair value ~FE

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference to
quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the
balance sheet date. For investments where there is no active
market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and other valuation models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of
the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery or other criteria for writing off amounts
charged to the allowance account against the carrying
amount of impaired financial assets.

EERGERTS LRXIARZIKRE
ZRFEDSREEREXRRLG
RAIzmBEAEBEE - EXRLE
REERMIH 2 RE - BIRAAER
MEEAFE ZERMEBEERT
HZRFmERS 2RE—BAR
BRIz TAZRETE  FRASR
ENMEEHMBERR -

TREERE

AEEREHEEANGREAEAE
BERERIXATHEEL MR
BEMLBRE -

BRI BR 2 B E

B FEEE BN IREHEK AR
ER R EWERRE HBRERE - Bl
EReAREAERAEREZEREE
REBEFN X (R ERERRAEZE
R E) IR 2B RRRERE (B
BRERAELEZAREEER REZ
ZHAE  c AERAEKSERIES
ERRERAR - REBBSBERN
BAHER - ERNEKERNIESA
B BB £ R E X R R A B R
BEe R EE < R EME B B ERT
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24FESHHEME (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement,
to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for NESGREMEVREZMS @ REH Lﬁq H
impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such BE (PIMEKAEHEEXRAEEKXR ﬂ
as the probability of insolvency or significant financial A E 2 R AR - MIGEH \\\g
difficulties of the debtor and significant changes in the FOEARRBEREBEBAER T @§
technological, market economic or legal environment that ZoEREE) BRAEBRREETE ﬁ%
have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group will WHIRBERRKIGHRAER 2B g’*ﬁ

not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the
receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

TRMEERE @

B A SR 2 B E ()

MR ERARREBESERLD - M
ZOR AR BB R ERE A
SRR AEAER ZBERER
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ZREBBRE RS RAER  EEE
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AR E LR ERE - BUTR 2R
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B2 BEHEEF SR ERREE - A
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in the income
statement, is transferred from equity to the income
statement. A provision for impairment is made for available-
for-sale equity investments when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where
other objective evidence of impairment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are not reversed through the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

° the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them
in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24FESHHEME (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including
interest-bearing bank borrowings)

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, promissory
note, other payables and accruals, amounts due to minority

shareholders, finance leases payment, interest-bearing bank RZHIE BEMBLHFHE - sFRIEMT Lﬁq H
borrowings and loan from a minority shareholder are initially BERER  VITURAFEREEE ﬂ
stated at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs HRIEAHNE - BENERFRX \\\ g
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using RN E - WSR2 EY @§
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting NEXR - BIRBEBERT @ LEKART] B %
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. R BAMBERIRNKREKPERE g* A

The related interest expense is recognised as “Finance
costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39 are
accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of the financial guarantee contract, except when such
contract is recognised at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provision,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24X EESTTHRUE (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash

equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including EHERERETZRE 2 F5ERIRIT Lﬁq H
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use. Re (BREHTFH ° ﬂ
Provisions BE g =
= ot

13

A 3E 23 o ]

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal MENBEEEZEHSIEMER £ ol

or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

24 TEESTHHRME (&

Income tax JiEEY

PSS B8 IR E TR IR © FriS T
R ER AR > HHEHEEBE XA
T RMEERETEZ®ER - Al

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates
to items that are recognised in the same or a different period
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directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, interests in associates
and joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor MREREZE: & A‘D‘]I H

taxable profit or loss; and ﬂ
e in respect of deductible temporary differences o MHERMBAR  HEAFRA @§

associated with investments in subsidiaries, interests EREERIIREBRZ AR ﬁ%

in associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred TEmms  E2EREET g’*ﬁ

tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is BER A R RER R ATge B Hig

probable that the temporary differences will reverse in JERTREMAKBEZEZEZIBNR

the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be T FHERELEHREELE -

available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

()  floating gains and losses on bullion, forex,
securities, futures and options contracts on all
open contracts existing at the balance sheet date
are recognised by translating the contract
amounts at the prices ruling at the balance sheet
date and unrealised gains and losses on
securities with reference to the prices at the
balance sheet date; and

(i) profits and losses on trading in bullion, forex,
securities, futures and options contracts are
recognised on the trade date basis;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

commission and brokerage income on dealing in
bullion, forex, securities and futures contracts are
recognised when the services are rendered;

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms; and

other services income, when the services are rendered.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

BERF

ARRRIRY —IBERES - BEM
BAKB RN NIKEBRERZAER
S2EERFEHBLOR AEEES
(BRES) UBROHHRRH 275K
EH B - M8 RIRE RS (R
TAZRE(RAEERS]) -

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is BEZRAGLERGRATIZREL
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which TEZHZRVEE - ErFERAE

they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting
date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each balance sheet date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification, which increases the total fair value of
the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise

beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of HIREAMFE - RIZARZFEEER LﬁiH

modification. FXZ ° ﬂ

4B

_ n L e

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as ATEERENE - RITEREREZ# @%E

additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per SEWE - R ARERINEHEE - ﬁﬁ

S

share. %aﬁ
Other employee benefits Hing BB F

Long service payments RERE 2

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in order to
be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance in the event of the termination of
their employment. The Group is liable to make such
payments in the event that such a termination of
employment meets the circumstances specified in the
Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future
long service payments expected to be made. The provision
is based on the best estimate of the probable future
payments which have been earned by the employees from
their service to the Group to the balance sheet date.

BEER (&
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTESHBRME (B
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from

contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.
Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the balance sheet date is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet
date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Hitfg 887 (&)

R B ARIE R B AR 2 5 B ERHIR
BERBFT R ERERRKENE
g ([eEEEll) HRA/RFA?
ReERELE2RE - KRR
BEEAFH o HFEAOLE - I
RIRIE SR TE £ 51 8l 2 3 € B KA
Bl RNk - BB EcEER
AEEBENFH  BBULEEESRE
B AKERBEEEFR ZEE

z those of the Group in an independently administered fund. HRE2EBFTREEMRSE ©

5 The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the

%U employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

5

% The employees of the Group which operates in Mainland REBRTPBEKREZEEESEHMT

S China are required to participate in a central pension scheme MEREEE 2P RERSFE - BRIE
operated by the local municipal government. The RIGRIKSFTEILZ R A - R ES

i B W as RIOBR

B R

AEEREREASLN  REFEEM
Eﬁ%%{ﬁ TER-EBETER
CREERDNABEZ ZEREA
mayﬂmﬁ%ﬁamTEEm
BB EERERFRAREREEY
&%ﬁ FFE R 2 TBHI BB R AR TR &
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24FESHHEME (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained earnings within the equity
section of the balance sheet, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

I
3 H
B ) A 2
Foreign currencies Hhik s
4B
- .- P e
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong MBHRERABTEY  BLRAAA @m%ﬁ
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation ZNEREHRE - AEEBRNSEE ﬁﬁ
L . o - o
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own BITEEAF 2NEEY  SEBY £ i

functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
using the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.

KRS
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currency of an overseas associate is currency
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet
date, the assets and liabilities of this entity is translated into
the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and its income
statement is translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in a separate component
of equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred
cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

24 TEESTHHRME (&

SN ()
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing
the asset impairment no longer exists, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rate or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment
test.

E ARG HE R & (&)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)
Long service payments

The Group and the Company had contingent liabilities in
respect of possible future long service payments to
employees under the Employment Ordinance. Management
has to consider whether it is appropriate to recognise the
provision for long service payments.

In making this judgement, the Group considers (i) the
number of current employees who have achieved the
required number of years of service to the Group and the
Company, as at the balance sheet date, in order to be eligible
for long service payments under the Employment Ordinance
if their employment is terminated in the circumstances
specified; (i) the average age of those employees; (iii) the
turnover rate of employees; and (iv) the possibility of the
termination of employment of those employees that meet
the circumstances specified in the Employment Ordinance
based on the relevant economic and other factors.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The available-for-sale financial assets have been stated at
costs less impairment. The impairment assessment was
based on the expected cash flows discounted at current
rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics. This impairment assessment requires the
Company to make estimates about expected future cash
flows and discount rates and hence are subject to
uncertainty.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of gooadwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting
date. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based
on the expected cash flows discounted at current rates
applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics. This valuation requires the Group to make
estimates about expected future cash flows and discount
rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group reviews its accounts receivable portfolio to
assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded
in the income statement, the Group makes judgement as
to whether there is any observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from a portfolio of accounts receivable before the decrease
can be identified with an individual account receivable in
that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data
indicating that there has been an adverse change in the
payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets
in the Group. Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar
to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash
flows. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss experience.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. DHEER

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by
business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment
reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
other business segments. Summary details of the business
segments are as follows:

(@) the securities segment represents the broking and
dealing of securities, futures and options contracts,
the provision of margin financing, advisory on asset
management and insurance consultancy services, and
results of investment holding and proprietary trading
of securities;

(b)  the bullion segment represents the broking and dealing
of bullion contracts;

(c) the forex segment represents the broking and dealing
of forex contracts;

(d) the trading segment represents the shipment sales of
motor vehicles, spare parts, accessories and related
products;
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(e) the corporate and others segment comprises loan
financing, the provision of management and
consultancy services, mining operations and other
services together with corporate income and expense
items; and

() the trading and manufacturing of aluminium products
segment represents the trading and manufacturing of
aluminium products in Mainland China which was
discontinued in the prior years.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the assets.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

2EER (&)
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Business segments

The following tables present revenue, (loss)/profit and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for
the Group’s business segments for the years ended
30 April 2008 and 2007.

4. o HRER (B
(a) X¥¥o2HE
TRENAEEEZE-_ZEZTN\F
N—EELFNA=1+HItEE

ZEBAEZWA - (BB, 8
MEETEE BEHEMAXE

o
Year ended 30 April 2008 BE_ZEENFNA=1THIFF
=3
Continuing operations
BESERK
Corporate
Securities Bullion Forex Trading and others Consolidated
#% ¢ SHE EE CERHEM &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL THEL T T TEL
Segment revenue: Ll N
Sales to external customers HETHREFR (15,020) 37,833 49,834 79,459 5,229 157,335
Other revenue EtlA 18,412 2 ) M) 1,099 19,433
Total @5 3,392 37,835 49,825 79,388 6,328 176,768
Segment results L (39,190) 27,531 37,304 4,703 (9,093) 21,255
Unallocated interest AAEFBHA
income and other income RE#HHA 4,990
Unallocated expenses AAEER (22,451)
Impairment on goodwil HENME (52,952) - - - - (52,952)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ﬁ’%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂﬂ&f\é - 50 - - - 50
Gain on deemed disposal of R ALERELR
partial interest in a subsidiary ~ EPRER 2 Uiz - - - - 104 104

Impairment on interests in NG S A

associates -
Impairment on available-for-sale 7 & 7 % &Rl E

investments -
Reversal of impairment on RERHC$ER

interest in LRERE

a jointly-controlled entity -
Share of profits of associates  [E(R B2 1 AT -

Finance costs HEER
Loss before tax BRASE
Tax HE

Loss for the year FEER

- - -0 (1,079

- - - 19y (219

- - - i 7
- - - 4,104 4,104
(2,814)

(50,903)

(2,073)

(52,976)
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@) Business segments (continued)

Year ended 30 April 2008 (continued)

4. TEEFR (&)
(a) ¥BHE @

BE _ZTZEN\FOA=+HIF

E (&)
Continuing operations
BELEEK
Corporate
Securities Bullion Forex Trading and others Consolidated
#% % SHE BE DERHEM &&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL ThEL THL THr THr THr
Assets and liabilities EERSE
Interests in associates REERE ER - - - - 74,996 74,996
Segment assets PREE 403,995 4,235 45,311 58,591 31177 549,309
Unallocated assets ﬂi TEE 93,456
Bank overdrafts included SAPBEEZRIER
in segment assets - - - - 750 750
Total assets EEER 718,511
Segment liabilities ECEL 185,987 8,731 39,059 27,682 4,323 265,782
Unallocated liabilties APEERE 15,819
Bank overdrafts included HARE éFZfEﬂ}H
in segment assets - - - - 750 750
Total liabilities BEAS 282,351
Other segment information: ~ EfiAE&EH :
Depreciation k= 1,276 115 103 - 3,184 4,678
Impairment on YRR E
accounts receivable 770 469 - - - 1,239
Impairment on available-for-sale A& 7% &
investments Ll - - - - 2,193 2,193
Impairment on goodwill BERE 59,952 - - - - 59,952
(Gain)/loss on e/ HEnE -
disposal/write-off of BRERZEZ
items of property, (k3) /B
plant and equipment 586 9 259 - 37) 904
Capital expenditure BREY 5,950 268 511 - 725 7,454
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. 7 ¥E&EX¥ (&)

(a) Business segments (continued) (a) XEKo¥E @&
Year ended 30 April 2007 HE_FFLFMA=THILF
E

Discontinued

operation

Continuing operations B

RENEER Bezh

Trading and

manufacturing

of aluminium

Corporate products
Securiies Bulion Forex  and others Total HER  Consolidated
&% i NE  BEREM B BERYE 8

HKS'000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0O  HK$O000
TR TERL TERL TR TERL TERL TR

0 o
Segment revenue: AEWA e
Sales to external customers  HETFHREE 109,285 132 10273 4,75 104,445 - 124 445 ‘@‘]1 E
Other revenue EflA 1,129 3 - 1287 2,369 - 2,369 ke 5

=

aa
Totel a3t 110414 %08 590 12681 BNV X bl
Segment resuls HB2E %613 GGG 2583 BB 8140 B X0

Unallocated interest income A2 EFIEMA

and other income REBMA 2317
Unallocated expenses RIEFER (29,252)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (E ERER T 2z - - - 8,775 8775 - 8,775
Gain on disposal of aninterest  HELRESIP£RE

inajonty-controled enty 24\ - - - - - 6,331 6,331
Reversal of impaiment of BERRER AERE

an interest in an associate - - - 715 75 - 715
Impairment of an interestin -~ AREHIPERGZHE

ajointly-controlled entity - - - (2,419 2419 - 2419
Share of profits and losses of. ~ FE(E THIREAHIREE :

linty-contoled enttes  £FEEAE - -6 8 (g8 (118 )

Associates sand - - - 5 5 - 5
Finance costs HEER (2,379
Profit before tax RETAT 69,290
Tax #E (38

Profit for the year EREH 69,252
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. 7 & (&)

(a) Business segments (continued) (a) ¥¥5%E(#E
Year ended 30 April 2007 (continued) BE—_TE+FMA=+HIFF
E (&

Discontinued

operation

Continuing operations BAL

REREER 3

Trading and

% manufacturing

2 of aluminium

% Corporate products
§ Securities Bullion Forex  and others Total FAER  Consoldated
. § &5 £ M LEREM B EEREE fa
3 “—(’) HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0
>3 Thn TEn Thn Thn TEn Thn T

8 Assets and liabilities EERGR

% g Segment assets NRAE 292,726 4,081 49,822 44006 390725 - 3075
88 Unllocated assets KoRAE 71,483
Total assets ZELE - 462,08
Seqment liabiities AEAR 91,870 752 41922 10842 152,160 - 152160
Unallocated libiltes AIRER 12,736
Total liabilties afE8% - 164,896

Other segment information: 17 E&# :
Depreciation fig 1,186 252 - 2,662 4,100 - 4,100
Impaiment/(Reversal of EhES S E/

impairment) on accounts (i E%m)

receivable 69) 505 - 67) 369 - 369
Impairment of items of property, 11+ BERREZHE

plant and equipment - 18 - - 18 - 18
Disposal/write-off of tems of 1% BERGEZ

property, plant and equipment 1% /i3 - - 8 - 8 - 8

Capital expenditure ARREY 1,282 103 9 3244 47% - 47%
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. 2 E&EX¥ (&)

(b) Geographical segments (b) WHWESHE
The following tables present revenue, certain asset and TEREINAEEHE_ZTZSNF
expenditure information for the Group’s geographical MA=+tHRLEFEzZES B2
segments for the year ended 30 April 2008. WA BETEERFAZER -
Year ended 30 April 2008 BE—_FTENFHA=1HILF
E

Hong Kong Canada  Philippines Taiwan Others Consolidated
Bk ngx Fag =) At &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TEx TEx TERL T TEL

I
Segment revenue: AERA “g M
A AT

Sales 1o external customers HETHARRP 146,578 (68,702) 79,459 - - 157,335 Al
i

i 2 I o B

Revenue from continuing RELEEBHA 4 B
operations 146,578 (68,702) 79,459 - - 157,335 E ?;
& ol

Other segment information: ~ H#A5EH

Segment assets PREE 460,516 116,124 58,591 74,996 7,534 717,761
Bank overdrafts included in HASBREZBTEY
segment assets 750 - - - - 750
718,511
Capital expenditure ERRY 7,321 - - - 133 7,454
No further geographical segment information is HREBZE-_ZTTLFMA=1
presented for the year ended 30 April 2007 as over HIFFEAREEBI% 2 WA T
90% of the Group’s revenue was derived from REBABZEP  NEBEBIO%
customers based in Hong Kong, over 90% of the ZEEMRES Bt EIE
Group’s assets were located in Hong Kong for the year EETHFNA=THIEFE

ended 30 April 2007. ZHE—F I MEIIEER -
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WAREAMW A
WATRBIARER 7 E%E%5 - BIENE
HE  BEHE m=e  IIEMEEED
ZHRERELWA EEBZAENESD
ZamAEE  BERAAFEREZF

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
shipment sales, commission and brokerage income from
securities, bullion, forex and futures contracts; profit or loss
on trading of securities and bullion; interest income from

loan and margin financing activities; and gross rental income.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income is as

BWA RESRAERE - AEEZ
WAREMBAZDHTT

follows:
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETEF
g HK$’000 HK$’000
g FHR TR
g—’. Revenue ON
Z8 Continuing operations: FIBACEETE
%g Shipment sales of motor vehicles AEZTEHE 79,459 -
é §_ Fees and commission income from me  INE - FBHK
é ,§l bullion, forex, securities and HEALNKLERG 2
§ 3 futures contract broking WERAe KA 75,445 41,350
ga Trading (loss)/gain on bullion, forex, Hd o IMNE - BER
securities and futures contracts, net HEAAZRS
(&B18) e - F8 (6,069) 75,801
Interest income from loan and ERRAERMEESZ
margin financing activities FEWA 3,742 3,452
Gross rental income HeWAEEHE 20 12
Others Hth 4,738 3,830
157,335 124,445
Other income Hbug A
Bank interest income RITF B U A 3,407 2,825
Dividend income from listed EARERERA
investments 1,617 402
Foreign exchange differences, net fE N Z% - FE 17,210 3,762
Others Hth 2,189 1,459
24,423 8,448
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6.

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after

BRBLAT (B518) & F
AR E 2 BB (518) SEFIE MK

charging/(crediting): S GEA) T &8 -
2008 2007
“EEN\F ZETLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E TER TAET
Depreciation e 15 4,678 4,100
Minimum lease payments under HELHREFZ
operating leases on leasehold RERORERESR
land and buildings 9,051 5,234
Auditors’ remuneration e &
Current year rEE 1,700 2,200
Under-provision in prior years BEFERBIR 280 220
1,980 2,420
Employee benefits expense EERMHXZ I
(including directors’ (BEESEMS (M:E8)) : jg SH,
remuneration (note8)): Y
Salaries and other benefits HekEMER 56,626 32,041 I =
Pension scheme contributions RIRE T EIHR 1,537 954 1
Less: Forfeited contributions refunded ORI TR R - - 25
&
Net pension scheme contributions** B B FTFE 1,537 954 fil
(Write-back of provision)/provision for RAKRB 2
long service payments (Betamm) /Bi% 37 (979) 1,278
Provision for annual leaves FRER 189 374
Total employee benefits expense BEERMAX 57,374 34,647
Gross rental income ROk (20) (12)
Less: Direct operating expenses B ERLERY - -
Net rental income HeWAFE (20) (12)
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE/MEmE
property, plant and equipment* BE &G EE 904 8
Impairment of items of property, WE - BERSEZ
plant and equipment* HE* 15 - 18
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of HEEHCERR 2
an interest in a jointly-controlled entity* CRERE),RE* 20 (77) 2,419

* Bt AREERZ [HEEMx
FEEIA o

Included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the face of
the consolidated income statement.

RIZZENFEA=+H AEEL
HORUL R AT HIA SRR B 2 3R
REeFEHR(CBBALF - |) o

* At 30 April 2008, the Group had no forfeited contributions >
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes
in future years (2007: Nil).
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MEEH
Group
rEEH
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts WITER - BEXR
and other loans: HEiERFE
wholly repayable within five years ARRAFRNBHEE 1,987 1,665
% not wholly repayable within five years ~ HZER AFREEEE 763 651
§ Interest on finance leases BERL 2B 64 63
5
g'- Attributable to continuing R WERTFER
§ ?; operations reported in the FEEACE ETS A
%3 consolidated income statement 2,814 2,379
SRt
Sa
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

EEME

FA - RELEHRYNREFERBED
FIG1TGRRBECEETMEWT

Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Fees e 6,078 1,750
Other emoluments: E At Fr BN
Salaries, allowances and e REREDA G
benefits in kind 2,374 8,222
Bonuses 14T 304 -
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHER 59 29
2,737 8,251
8,815 10,001
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFBTESE

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

FAXN FEIUIFRITESTZHE

during the year were as follows: M
2008 2007
—BENE - TTLH
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FET
Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond PREZHR S 180 120
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin BENLE 180 120
Mr. Wong Yu Choi \mM LA 120 80
480 320

e (W) MEL Y

[
A
A
r\,
[
A
AR
=
ﬁ
ﬁ}‘
;ﬂ_ﬁ
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM< (&)
(continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (continued) (a) BIUEHTES (@)
There were no other emoluments payable to the AN E A RN TR IERAT
independent non-executive directors during the year BEZ2HFM(CESEF - |) o
(2007: Nil).
(b) Executive directors (b) BTE=E
Salaries,
g allowances Pension
§ and benefits scheme Total
§ Fees in kind Bonuses contributions remuneration
B F& 28 BHhe
>3 BE  REMRN B HEME MesE
5 g HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
:U A —_ A - . — . f— . —
£ A7 FA A7 FAR A7
St =
S5 2008 =
O =+
Sa Mr. Haywood Cheung RERLE 4,781 1,140 100 - 6,021
Mr. So Pak Kwai #RELE - 282 30 - 312
Dr. Chang Si-Chung RiFEET - - - - -
Mr. Chan Hok Ching REHEE - 822 21 25 868
Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley ~ REELAE 817 130 153 34 1,134
5,598 2,374 304 59 8,335
2007 —BELE
Mr. Haywood Cheung RERLA 1,430 3,958 - - 5,388
Mr. So Pak Kwai #RELE - 260 - - 260
Dr. Chang Si-Chung RiFEET - - - - -
Mr. Chan Hok Ching REs%4E - 1,263 - 12 1,275
Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley ~ R{EEL4E - 2,741 - 17 2,758
1,430 8,222 - 29 9,681
There was no arrangement under which a director FA - BEERESITLLHN
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during ZYREBERETAME -

the year.
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included

three (2007: three) directors, details of whose remuneration

are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of

the remaining two non-director, highest paid employees for

the year are as follows:

9. AfuRSHES

FR - AfismHEETEE=( (=
ETLF D EF - EFHEFHRB
R EXPIES - ESEMU RS IFE
ZREAFEZHEFBNOT :

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—ZEENF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FET

Salaries, allowances and e REREYNG

benefits in kind 1,270 1,257
Bonuses TE4T 1,424 -
Pension scheme contributions RIRE B 24 23
2,718 1,280

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

BRTHFHNEF R FHIEESE
BAHIT

Number of employees

EEAR
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TT+E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ —1,000,0007% 7T = 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000/% JT 1 -
2 2

e (W) MEL Y

[
A
A
r\,
[
A
A
=
ﬁ
ﬁ
o
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10. TAX 10. Fi 1B
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BBEAFEREBRIZ AT ER
17.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong w AR B BN G EAT7 5% IR ER
Kong during the year (2007: 17.5%). Taxes on profits (ZEELF 1 17.5%) - Hithib @ fER
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of w2 MBI IRBE AR B L T
tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group ZEVEEBRZEABE  KR1TEH
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and EB - REREOIFE -
practices in respect thereof.
2008 2007
—EENEF —ZTELF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Group: REE
Over-provision of current tax BAEFE ZBIHRIIE
in prior year AR (5) -
Current Bl HA 2,050 9
Deferred (note 36) EEFIE (M 7E36) 28 29
Total tax expense for the year FAZMIBRX BT 2,073 38
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10. TAX (continued) 10. B8 (48)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit REARZARAREBARER
before tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in ALERER 2R R E 2 BRTAT (B
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to 18B) a2 MIER S BRI ERE R
the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: B2HIERAX ZHERNOT :
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE ZTEELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
(Loss)/profit before tax BRB AT (B518) & A
(including profit from (BiEE&IEL
discontinued operations) B A (50,903) 69,290
Less: Share of profits and losses of B EREHI R ER ‘@‘] H
jointly-controlled entities B ARz EIEER o
and associates (4,104) 2,938 °
3
(55,007) 72,228 4 B
&
A
Tax (credit)/charge BEEBEGE = ol
at the statutory rate ZHE R, HAX (9,626) 12,640
Income not subject to tax MAEBT 2 WA (7,665) (13,145)
Expenses not deductible for tax A HIB 2 B 24,494 1,328
Tax losses utilised from previous years AT FE 2 FHIBEEE (5,130) (785)
Tax expense at the Group’s BEAEEEBRMEHE
effective rate Z BIAR X 2,073 38
Tax expense attributable to continuing  R4RA KFEERP LR
operations reported in the I BISE T
consolidated income statement FEAE R IE ST 2,073 38
There was no tax attributable to jointly-controlled entities HE_ZZN\FE-_ZTTLFNA=
and associates shared by the Group for the years ended THIEFE  WENEEEG LR

30 April 2008 and 2007. Bl b2 R Bt A B 2 BHIE ©
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11. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11.

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 30 April 2008 included a profit
of HK$133,631,000 (2007: loss of HK$8,973,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 40(b)).

12

During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group had
discontinued its operation of trading and manufacturing of
aluminium products. The results of the Group’s trading and
manufacturing of aluminium products operation are as

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 12.

RABERFAEARE
(B8 aF

HE_ZZE N \FHA=ZTHILFE -
RRFIERFBEARBGGREEBEERE
RARB T BEREANE R 2 & F
133,631,000 T (ZEZTLF : B8
8,973,000/ 7T) (Ff7E40(b)) ©

CRIEREETR

REBE-_TTLFEMA=THILFE
N AEEERIEKEREREER
BUERT - AEBIEMBEE RBE
E A 33

follows:
2007
—TTLF
HK$’000
FET
Share of losses of FE(h —FEHEREEHI 2 E1E
a jointly-controlled entity (1,128)
Gain on disposal of HE— R RS s
a jointly-controlled entity 6,331
5,203
No asset relating to the trading and manufacturing of RZZFEZLFMWA=1+H  AEEE
aluminium products operation was classified as held for sale mEERHEEKHBEERSER
as at 30 April 2007. BEELE o
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(continued)

The net cash flows on the trading and manufacturing of
aluminium products operation for the year ended 30 April
2007 are as follows:

12. ORI RBE XK (8)

BHE_TTELFMOA=1THILFE -
MERBEBERAERBZHREREF
I

2007

—TELF

HK$’000

FHET

Operating activities KRR -

Investing activities KEEE 5,311

Financing activities BEEE -

Net cash inflow WEMAFEE 5,311
Earnings per share: FRER

Basic, from the discontinued
operation

The calculations of basic earnings per share from the
discontinued trading and manufacturing of aluminium
products operation for the year ended 30 April 2007 are
based on:

Profit attributable to ordinary RAEERERREA ARG
equity holders of the Company ERIMHEEIEERES
from the discontinued trading E RS SR
and manufacturing of
aluminium products operation

Number of ordinary shares REESRERER

in issue during the year ZEBRFRNDEITRE
used in the basic earnings

per share calculation

HEAR - REERELEER

HKO0.87 cents 71l

BE_TTLFMOA=1THIFE

KEERIEKREREMEENBESR
B2 BRERBFIE TS F A

HK$5,203,000 /& 7T

607,566,000

RS LV ES T/ TaeT
LvHE (W WELY
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13. DIVIDENDS 13. K&
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interim - HK$0.005 (2007: Nil) HHf - §%0.005/8 T
per share (ZETtF &) 4,148 -
Proposed final - Nil (2007: HK$0.006) ZE:iEAH - # (T F :
per share & }%0.0067% 1) - 4,977
4,148 4,977
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. AP EERERRRE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EZ2BR (B8R &F
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss BREETBEBERARAR T ERERR

for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$52,875,000 (2007: earnings of
HK$69,203,000) and 822,814,000 (2007: 607,566,000)
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share from the
continuing operations is based on the loss of
HK$52,875,000 (2007: profit of HK$64,049,000) and
822,814,000 (2007: 607,566,000) weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share amounts for the years
ended 30 April 2008 and 2007 have not been disclosed as
no diluting events existed during these two years.

R IE(LFE E1852,875,0008 T (= F
THF  A7F)69,203,0005 7T) M FER
B2 17 & B A% 822,814,000/ (— = Z
+4F : 607,566,0000%) 2 A4 F 15 £

uy%—"

FEREEG 2 BREARF TR &
FNEE52,875,0008 T (ZEZT+
F % 764,049,000/8 7T) KRB EITE
FAL822,814,0000% (—EF J:E
607,566,0000% 2 M1 F L& B

HREE T N\FR_FETLFN
ﬂ:—l—Elu:EEIE?ﬂi%é‘E%%%# :
B 1t 5% M8 4 3 M B R EE (B9 18)
/B HKREE



Notes to Financial Statements

B 35 ¥R R M AL

30 April 2008 —ZEZN\EMA=+H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. Y% - MENRE

EQUIPMENT
Group rEE
Leasehold land Furniture,
and buildings equipment
under medium Leasehold and motor
term leases’ improvements vehicles Total
HHEL
HELHEK B R
BF HANERE RAE BE
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAEL THER THER FET
30 April 2008 —EEN\EWMA=TH ¥
Wy H
Cost: BAE: i
At beginning of year RET] 40,250 6,640 12,430 59,320 ‘@‘] E
Additions AE - 4,798 2,656 7,454 4 B
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AT - 1,469 4,453 5,922 j; S
Disposals/write-off &/ - (2,204) (6,535) (8,759) ik
At 30 April 2008 RZEEN\FMA=TH 40,250 10,683 13,004 63,937
Accumulated depreciation 2MERAE :
and impairment:
At beginning of year RET] 13,536 3,027 8,158 24,721
Provided during the year FRREER 1,610 1,376 1,692 4,678
Disposals/write-off ME /i - (1,368) (5,758) (7,126)
At 30 April 2008 R-EEN\EMA=1H 15,146 3,035 4,092 22,273
Net book value at 30 April 2008 RZEEN\ENA=THZ
FEFE 25,104 7,648 8,912 41,664
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - ERZE (&

(continued)
Group e
Leasehold land Furniture,
and buildings equipment
under medium Leasehold and motor
term leases’ improvements vehicles Total
HHEL
HELHE Bk R
BF HANERE RAE Y]
% HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g THR T#7 T#7 THR
2 30 April 2007 “2BLEMA= LA
z3
%g Cost: AR :
g3 At beginning of year RE 40,250 3,713 10,232 54,195
58 Addtions FE - 2,701 2,025 4,726
§ 3 Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AT - 226 469 695
sa Disposals/write-off e/ HsH - - (296) (296)
At 30 April 2007 RZEE+tFMA=TH 40,250 6,640 12,430 59,320
Accumulated depreciation ZEAMERAE
and impairment:
At beginning of year RET) 11,926 1,951 7,014 20,891
Provided during the year FRREER 1,610 1,058 1,432 4,100
Impairment during the year FRRE - 18 - 18
Disposals/write-off HE /i - - (288) (288)
At 30 April 2007 R-ZZ+EMA=1HA 13,536 3,027 8,158 24,721
Net book value at 30 April 2007 RZZET+FMA=THZ

REFE 26,714 3,613 4,272 34,599
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company AT
Furniture,
equipment
Leasehold and motor
improvements vehicles Total
&M B
HOMELE RARE BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL
30 April 2008 —EE\EMA=1H
Cost: FANE
Cost at beginning of year REN 2 KAE 134 47 181
Disposals/write-off HE /M (134) (47) (181)
At 30 April 2008 R-FENEMA=+A - - - o
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE - ~ B
At beginning of year RE 101 26 127 ‘@‘M B
Provided during the year FRRBER 3 1 4 e
Disposals/write-off HE /s (104) (27) (131) oo
At 5D
At 30 April 2008 R-BEN\ENA=1+H - - - Ao
Net book value at 30 April 2008 RZFZNFUA=TREZ
RmFE - - -
30 April 2007 “EELEMA=1A
Cost at beginning of year RENER_TZLEF
and at 30 April 2007 mA=+AZRAE 134 47 181
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE
At beginning of year REA] 56 15 71
Provided during the year FRREER 45 11 56
At 30 April 2007 RZEZLFNA=+H 101 26 127
Net book value at 30 April 2007 RZEZLFNA=+THZ
BREFE 33 21 54
#  As the prepaid land lease payments cannot be allocated # BRTEN LSRRI S D AL

WwRBFEG - RIEBEEEGTTESE
175 AR > 2RE S AL RIS
FHA - JIEME - BE Mkt 2 At
BEL -

reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of land and building
as finance leases in property, plant and equipment in
accordance with HKAS 17 “Leases”.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

As at 30 April 2008, all leasehold land and buildings of the
Group in Hong Kong were pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 33).

The net book value of furniture, equipment and motor
vehicles of the Group included an amount of HK$881,000
(2007: HK$1,383,000) in respect of assets held under
finance leases.

15. ¥1% - BERRE (&

RZZENFMA=+H  NEBEMR
EEAHETHNEFHEIRIT - 1
ARNEEFRERTEE 2R KM
33) °

AEBRM - REXREZE@FE
BERERERLOEE 2 EESS1,000
BT (ZEE+F : 1,383,000670) °

16. GOODWILL 16. B &

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—EENE ZEELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Cost R ANME 109,683 1,498
Accumulated impairment ZERE (52,952) -
Net carrying amount BREFE 56,731 1,498

Cost at beginning of year, RENZKAE - BEFHRE

net of accumulated impairment 1,498 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 41) Wi — KB AR (i 3E41) 108,185 1,498
Impairment during the year FRRE (52,952) -
Net carrying amount BRAEFE 56,731 1,498
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16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. B & (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to the following cash-generating units, which are
reportable segments, for impairment testing:

° forex segment; and
o securities segment.

The recoverable amounts of the forex segment and the
securities segment have been determined based on value
in use calculations using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
the directors. The discount rate applied to the cash flow

projections is 10% (2007: 10%) and cash flows beyond the B E2 R RER T ARHE - ‘@‘]1 H
five-year period are ignored. ﬂ
The carrying amount of goodwill, allocated to each segment PERESEB2HBEZEARBNT :E% B
is as follows: B g
Forex segment Securities segment Total
PEEK REEHR @zt
2008 2008 2007 2008 2007

“EE\E —%%
HK$000  HK$'000

TER

BE R E R

AEITRERNR  EBEBA K
BrREZER o EEATREELE
I (BIRAZ2HRZ D) ¢

o IMEXRF K
I

SN TG N 7B 5 5 55 2 PTEl e 58 (I
A AEETEATE) DIRESHE
CHFHYBEEERRESRERA
BT HEAREeRERAZITEX
BIO%(ZEZTLF  10%) * MAF

“ERN\E “TTLF “BENE _TRLF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Té#n  TEx  TER  TERn

HEZERE 1,498

Carrying amount of goodwil

55,233 - 56,731 1,498
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16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. BE (&)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) BEZEBENE (&)
The following describes each key assumption used in the TXHEESARNETHERENR
value in use calculations of the forex segment and the ZINERE REFEH 2 EREBER
securities segment on which the directors have based to BREACEEZERE

undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Growth rate 1R E

No growth rate has been taken into account in the cash MR AEBRABEREREA S
flow projections as the Group considers that the growth 2 BRI EREREEAFIL &L
rate cannot be reliably measured. iR & -

Discount rate R E

The discount rate used are before tax and reflect specific Pk A 2 TR R bR R AT & < R 8245
risks relating to the relevant units. BEMLEBAZSERR -
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17. OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS 17. HttRHHEE

Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Membership of the Chinese Gold SIREEH SO
and Silver Exchange Society 2,000 2,000
Deposits with the SEHK: B FTiR®
Compensation Fund FEEE 343 243
Fidelity Fund BRES 300 200
Admission fee paid to the Hong Kong N F&EBHR REZEFR A A
Securities Clearing Company Limited 2 A &% 300 200
Contribution to the Guarantee Fund of R REE KX R FRE
the Central Clearing and Settlement EEHZHK

System 300 200

I
Deposit with the Reserve Fund of BAMEHEEER AR jg;“,
Hong Kong Futures Exchange REEESRS -
Clearing Corporation Limited 1,500 1,668 H H%
Deposit for acquisition of a mining WE—MEERRZE® :g B
company* - 4,036 ;g
Loan to a mining company** BERTF—HBEQF 4,468 4,036 1S
Deposit for acquiring an exploration WP B AERRE ]S A o
right in mainland China 782 706
9,993 13,289
* As at 30 April 2007, the Group recorded a deposit of * R-ZEZHFNMA=+H  KEEH

approximately HK$4,036,000 for the acquisition of a 15% WEmBREREEERAZER AR

*%

equity interest in T EREBREERMAEBRAG(FER
{Z"), a company incorporated in Mainland China which is
principally engaged in the operation of a gold mine in Xinjiang.
The acquisition was completed during the year ended

30 April 2008.

The amount represented a loan to ¥17® E{& which is
unsecured, interest-free and not repayable within twelve
months from the balance sheet date.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other long term assets

approximate to their fair values.

*k

(M BREE]) 15% A ES 2RI 24
4,036,000/ T ABR © Z 2B HE
REEFEMANIL - TRRIBL L0
5% ZBAWBEREE—TTNSF
MA=1tRHIFEARTHK -

ZERIERETHEREZER -
ERTVEER - TR B NBAREE
BRT-_EARERE -

nur

im R

AEEEMEMEEZ FEERZER
FEMRS -
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE

.*

450 3 305 3 3
A

Impairment testing of intangible assets

Intangible assets comprised the eligibility rights to trade on
or through the SEHK and Hong Kong Futures Exchange
Limited, which have no expiry dates.

The recoverable amount of the intangible assets has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by the directors.

No growth rate has been taken into account in the cash
flow projections as the Group considers that the growth
rate cannot be reliably measured. Key assumptions used in
the cash flow projections included financial budgets and
discount rates. Financial budgets are determined with
reference to the financial results of the previous years while
the discount rate is 10% (2007: 10%).

Group

rEH
2008 2007
—ZEENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET

Cost: FXARE

At beginning of year REH 19,984 19,984
Acquisition of a subsidiary U g — R BT /B 2 A 187 -

% At end of year IAGERES 20,171 19,984

7]

(]

% Accumulated amortisation ZETEIERORE ¢

3 and impairment:

2 At beginning of year REH] 17,821 17,821
Z8 Provided during the year FRIERAERS = -
58
g3 At end of year R 17,821 17,821
5§

S| = Net book value at end of year REKLZREFE 2,350 2,163
SF
o

BEEERERNR

BN EEBRANKEBBIALE
AHERSMERARETERECE
BIEIR A EARHER o

BIVEE BB &5 (R EREE
AERRR) DRESHEZ D FHY
BHREERRAERERUEE -

HAARNEERBERR KT St
2 MR ERS K28R I &Lt
RERR - A ERESREEAERA
CEFEBRELBDEVBBERITEAEX -
MBEE N2 ETFE B EEE
E o MATRAZINREAA10% (=ZF
TLEF 1 10%) ©
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. BB 2 s
Company
AT
2008 2007
—ZEENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETMRRG - R AE 41,510 41,510
Due from subsidiaries JE UL BT BB A B R E 1,356,696 1,163,448
Due to subsidiaries P )ENGIE (66,521) (48,053)
1,331,685 1,156,905
Provision for impairment# BB (963,951) (1,105,316) |
Wy H
367,734 51,589 T
it
#  An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted # HBHRETHWBEBARZEEIERA @ﬁ
investments with a carrying amount of approximately - gt TERE(E#91,355,695,000 ﬁ?;
HK$1,355,695,000 (before deducting the impairment loss) Bt CRINRRERER) CET 45 A
(2007: HK$994,000,000) because the net assets value of 994,000,000/ 7T) 2 Ik E IR A R
certain subsidiaries were negative. A ©
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free BB AR & EER - TFH B
and have no fixed terms of repayment. RERTERD -
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note FEMB AR ZFFBEHR Y B IREMN

48 to the financial statements. 5548
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY- 0. HEZEH Xz #xE
CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHT
Share of net assets JEBIEFEE - -
Due from a jointly-controlled entity JE e — i FE R Il 1D K 92 169
2 Loans to a jointly-controlled entity MY —RRRE %UJL%ZE/TA 2,250 2,250
8
5
& 2,342 2,419
B
>3
58 Provision for impairment BIERE (2,342) (2,419
2o
L o
58
Qe
§ % The amount due from a jointly-controlled entity is unsecured, JE U — ] Rl b 2 2 ROIB T K
® 5 interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The loans ﬁ T ERERTEEFRA 47—
to a jointly-controlled entity are unsecured, bear interest at HRAZEHCEZERDERR - %
- the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2% per annum and 7%7_Eﬁ—1g$ﬂ’*”zﬂﬂ¢ﬂzﬂ_?r 8
st are repayable within one year. In the opinion of the directors, BAR—FRNER EFRR BRAZ
balances with the jointly-controlled entity have been fully HEZEHPEZQCEEBFEL T ENK
impaired because the operation of the jointly-controlled &IEMEZ—J%’\ETﬁ £ H 7] 428 i) 1

entity is declining and the likelihood of recoverability is low. 7 EREWTBEURE ©
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY- 20. HEEFIEER (BE)
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)
Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity at 30 April 2008 RZZTEZENFHA=+H  EREH
are as follows: PEZFHOT :
Effective The The
Place of equity Group’s Group’s
incorporation/ interest  percentage percentage
Business registration attributable of voting of profit Principal
Name structure  and operations  to the Group power sharing activity

EmmY/ FREE REE R FEH
2R h2 BB HERREE  EAEN

a8 EBER XY RARR BN ZEA TEER
sunArt Entertainment Limited Corporate Hong Kong 50% 50% 50% Entertainment |
(“sunArt’) NS 00 1R 2 :ﬂ ;H.
.
Since the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group discontinued BEEZE-_ETLFNA=+HIEFE ‘;‘] %
the recognition of its share of losses of sunArt because the B HRAREE 2 ElhsunArtz EEIE @'E
share of losses of it had exceeded the Group’s interest BEEGEDR  AEETHEERERE ﬁf;
therein. The Group’s unrecognised share of losses of sunArt fhsunArt 2 [E518 - REBREZE T £ 2l
for the year ended 30 April 2008 was HK$489,000 (2007: NEFENA=ZTHILEFEHNAERZE
HK$1,390,000). frsunArt 2 518 5489,0008 7T (Z 2

+ £ : 1,390,000/ 7T) °
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY- 20. HEEHISE 2 ER (E)
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial 7% [ AN 5 B R b 2 2 B A
information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities: BERE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Share of the jointly-controlled JEAE HRIEH B
g entities’ assets and liabilities: BERBE:
g
% Current assets BNV EE 574 1,374
=3 <
2 Non-current assets ERMEBEE 352 717
Z8 Current liabilities EB=YE (4,683) (4,870)
58
23 _
85 Net liabilities FAEAE (8,757) (2,779)
58
IShi=
83 Share of the jointly-controlled FEAG LRI S (b FE AR
o0
e entities’ results:
Revenue WA - (2,937)
Other income H A YA 41 7,210
41 4,273
Total expenses F X 458 (1,019) (10,680)

Tax 18 - _

Loss after tax briii& B8 (978) (6,407)
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Group
AEE

2008 2007

—EENE BT AF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Share of net assets EIFEE 73,541 -

Goodwill on acquisition WiBEE 2 mE 2,447 -

75,988 -

Loan to an associate BT —HEBEQRRZER 900 900

Due from associates JE U B 2 A B FRIR 117 36 |

Due to associates KB E N T 2 I8 - - jg éﬂ
e
-3
77,005 936 LB
A %
= at
Provision for impairment VERIEEE (2,009) (936) ﬁ S
% al

74,996 -

The loan to an associate is unsecured, interest-bearing with
interest charged at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus
2% per annum and repayable on demand. Other than the
aforementioned, the balances with associates are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

BT —HEERR 2 ERTYEER
BETREBENEMENR2EE
WiE BSKIEIE - FRATAE SN - BHEgE
NRIZEHRTVERW - TF B RER
EERE -
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. & N\ T
(continued)

2z (&)

Particulars of the associates are as follows: BENRZFBOT ¢

Percentage of

ownership
Place of Particulars of interest
Business incorporation/ issued attributable to
Name structure registration shares held the Group Principal activities
A&
EMmL/ FRERT EiEzrE
8 EBER -Eab ki RipEE EEZEIL TEXHK
Asia Vigour Productions  Corporate Hong Kong  Ordinary shares of 48%  Producing, organising and
Limited NG e HK$1 each promoting live concerts
BELNGEEEERAF BREEIETL BERENRER
il
Asia Vigour (Holdings) Corporate British Virgin -~ Ordinary shares of 48% Investment holding
Limited NG Islands USS$1 each REER
KEEAHS BSRAEEIXTZ
ik
EEBRKRHAERRT  Corporate Taiwan  Ordinary shares of 21.75% Property development
(“De-Nian”) NS = NT$10 each MERFE
EEERRNARAT BREE
([2%]) Ma’ion
ZERK
Statutory audits of these companies are not performed by ZERNRWIIBBEESFAIEBME

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. ITEEEZ °
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 1. BERNTZ2ER (8)

(continued)

On 27 September 2007, Think Right Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company (“Think Right”), acquired 6,400,000 new
shares of De-Nian, being approximately 8.38% of the then
entire issued share capital of De-Nian at a consideration of
NT$64,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$16,120,000) in cash. On 31 March 2008, Think Right
acquired further 23,600,000 new shares of De-Nian at a
consideration of NT$236,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$60,668,000). Upon completion of these
acquisitions, Think Right owns 25% equity interest of
De-Nian. Details of this acquisition are set out in a circular
to the shareholders of the Company dated 13 March 2008.

During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group RBE-_ST+EMA=ZTAILEE ™!
discontinued the recognition of its share of losses of Asia W AEBETHEEREE(GAsIa \\\ g
Vigour (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiary, Asia Vigour Vigour (Holdings) Limited }& E [} & A 7] @§
Productions Limited, because the share of losses of the BETMEERIEERATIZERE - ﬁ%
associates had exceeded the Group’s interests therein. The BEGZEHZE AR ZBEEEA g* A

Group’s unrecognised share of losses of these associates
for the year ended 30 April 2008 was HK$67,000 (2007:
HK$1,157,000).

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s associates extracted from their
management accounts:

RZZFEZLFNAAZTLERH  AAF
2 — I B 22 &) Think Right Limited (&
FEERRAR) ([BIE) UREREFE
#:64,000,0007T (K9#855 716,120,000
75 7T) W B8 18 4 6,400,000 #TR% 17 -

HEFEREIPE HITIRAHI8.38% -
RZEZENF=ZA=+—H BN
KB %1 & 236,000,000 (IHFH
60,668,000/& ) # —H EEF
23,600,000 #T AR 17 © 3% 55 Wi 5T X
% BIEBERFE25%RARER ° %
BHREZFBEHNBBA_STNEF
“AT=BRARRFTRRZBEHA o

AEERZEHENT 2 EZE - A%
EREBE_ZEE N \FOA=THILF
EEABERAELZERERARZE
BR67,0008 T (ZEZLF
1,157,000/ 7T) °

TR M A A T BTSSR
HE (S aEERER)

2008 2007

—EENF —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Assets BE 316,999 3,119
Liabilities aE 27,683 (5,926)
Revenue WA - 17,469
Losses B8 2,748 (2,793)
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 22 A HEZKRE
INVESTMENTS
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—ZENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Unlisted equity investments in BB ZIEETRA
Hong Kong, at cost "E B AE 136 136
Less: Provision for impairment B ORER S - -
136 136
Unlisted equity investments outside BEBUINZ IE LT
Hong Kong, at cost ®E - BKAE 17,661 13,625
Less: Provision for impairment A ORERE (15,818) (13,625)
1,843 -
1,979 136

The above equity investments were designated as available-
for-sale equity financial assets and have no fixed maturity

date or coupon rate.

E' o

bR B ARIE R E A R BOR
TREE BXEETIHEAXES
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23. DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY

23. EN—BEREALTNE

Group rEE
Maximum
amount
Balance at Balance at outstanding
Related party 1 May 2007 30 April 2008 during the year
RER
R-EZELHFHE R-ZZEENFDO i8Rz
FBEAL B—Bz#&e A=tHZ&ER BAEH
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Cheung Leung Sing Ko 178 - 178

Mr. Cheung Leung Sing is a close family member of
Mr. Haywood Cheung, a director of the Company. The
amount due from the related party was unsecured, interest-
free and had no fixed terms of repayment. The amount was
fully settled during the year ended 30 April 2008.

RRBEERARRESZREBERLE
ZERRE  BR—2EEEALZ
FIBTHEEM - RS LB E EE R
H - ZHRBECRBE_TZTN\FHA
ZTHEFERZ2HENE -

24. INVENTORIES 24. 8
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Finished goods 2P m 130 130

e (W) MEL Y

[
A
A
r\,
[
A
AR
=
ﬁ
ﬁ}‘
H
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 25. FEWBR X

2008 2007
—EENEF ZTEELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Accounts receivable: REATEIEZ FERERR
— from securities, futures, forex and — B5 > HE - INER
bullion dealing services 5 BERY 90,962 42,985
— from margin financing and — FRBMERERER
money lending operations 550 2,429
% — from trading operations — BEEK 58,587 -
s — from corporate and other operations ~ — 102 & H i 3 75 12 -
A
2 150,111 45,414
8
2o \
>3 Impairment A (2,851) (1,622)
83 147,260 43,792
St
N3
S&

Securities, futures, forex and bullion dealing services

The Group allows a credit period of up to the settlement
dates of the respective securities, futures, forex and bullion
transactions or a credit period mutually agreed with the
contracting parties. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. In view of
the aforementioned and that the Group’s accounts
receivable relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Overdue
accounts receivable bear interest with reference to the Hong
Kong dollar prime rate.

BE -HE - HNERESEERY

AEBEETHEARES - B8 5
EREEXZHZXWAZEER =
WMAOSTHEMEZEESR - B82%
FHAEGRSEERE -ASER %
FEREREREERUKENR - BK
BiEERBRERE - BEEHRERE
B ABEHRE - R ERIBFTRKEA
SEZEEEFEZATF AR
HHEREETEERRZAE - B
HEKERZRETREEMN X
B o
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Margin financing and money lending operations

The Group allows a credit period mutually agreed with the
contracting parties. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit risk. Loans
for margin financing are secured by the pledge of customers’
securities as collateral. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by management. In view of the aforementioned
and the fact that the Group’s accounts receivable relate to
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. Accounts receivable are interest-bearing at a
rate mutually agreed with the contracting parties.

Trading operations

The balance included an amount due from a customer of
HK$58,587,000. The Group allows a credit period of up to
210 days to its customer. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivable to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
management.

Corporate and other operations
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding receivable to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management.

25. FEW AR (4)

FREBMERERER

AEEETRGOETHEBEZRE
B - BRRXFPHUERREERE -
REEFN@RFBEREZEREEE
WS - BB EERRBERE -
HFRBEEFNEREP ZEFIER
ERRELER BHESRAEEA
BEBm - R Ll ER R AKE
ZEBEFEZBEFER - HutH
BEERESETEERRZHEE - BYSR
FTRENEFTEEHEZBERGFTR -

BEX®

HEHET AT P R 3K58,587,0007 7T °
REBGLETHEP 2EEHE210H ©
REERNEBEBETEKRERRE
WEER - BRGEERBRERE -
BEEHMmEEAB TR -

EERHAMER

AREBRNERFBEREREREERER

WHERR - BR B EERRBERE -
BHESRBSREREABEHRE

e (W) MEL Y

[
A
A
r\,
[
A
A
=
ﬁ
ﬁ
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 25. FEUXBRRX (&)

REBRGEE B 2 BRI FOREE
B REERDNE ZREDHTT

An aged analysis of the accounts receivable as at the
balance sheet date, based on the settlement due date and
net of provisions for impairment, is as follows:

Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENEF ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHT
@
2
s Current to 1 month BNEE— 18 A 141,761 39,019
& 1 to 3 months —Z=={@A 2,210 3,579
g—’. 3 months to 1 year —E@RE—%F 3,289 1,194
Z8
%g 147,260 43,792
= ,?1 The movements in provision for impairment of accounts JEBERFOR E R 2 BT -
§ g receivable are as follows:
e
Group
. rEH
T 2008 2007
—EE\F —TTLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
At beginning of year REH] 1,622 1,253
Impairment losses recognised BRI E R 1,389 438
Impairment losses reversed KRR ERE (150) (69)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKEB QR (10) -
At end of year RERK 2,851 1,622
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Included in the above provision for impairment of accounts
receivable is a provision for individually impaired accounts
receivable of HK$2,851,000 (2007: HK1,622,000) with a
carrying amount of HK$3,965,000 (2007: HK$1,622,000)
before impairment. The individually impaired accounts
receivable relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the probability of recovery is minimal. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

The aged analysis of the accounts receivable that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

25. FEW AR (4)

i EUCERFORERE R EERRE
JE U BR R 2 #452,851,0008 T (==
THF 1 1,622,00087T) © ZEEK
BR FURVE R 2 BR {8 A3,965,00078 7T
(ZZZ+%F : 1,622,000 7T) ° &7
BARBRFEBATBRRE X P
BREZAIEEEMER - XEEW
R ZFEHFTE A AER R
HAfZE MBI o

RARBIRE 2 FE U AR 32 BR ik 20 AT 40
T~

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—EENEF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired REEATRARBE 122,343 34,419
Less than 1 month past due —{& A W B Ef 19,418 4,600
1 to 3 months past due —ZE =@ AR 2,210 3,579
Over 3 months past due @ = 1E A 2 5 2,174 1,194
146,145 43,792

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

R BTN ARORE 2 B UK AR 0 B 3 B 4
RAGLBZEREFBR -

e (W) MEL Y

[
A
A
r\,
[
A
A
=
ﬁ
ﬁ
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25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 25. FEUXBRRX (&)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a FIHAB RBE 2 BB AR R % R B K
number of independent customers that have a good track EERBROGBELB I BIRFE
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the BB BEBEBTILR  ARFAEER
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision B pRERAHBTE  ARNEEER
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as WARBEERNEE  BRFEHDT
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and R ARBEURE - B AR L EH EMA
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group WERE AEEVRBEZEEHRT
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements BEMAERRENEMEEN®RE
over these balances. it
g The carrying amounts of the Group’s accounts receivable AEBEWERREERELATE
§ approximate to their fair values. HE -
3
>3 26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 26. AIRE FIE R HME
5 & OTHER RECEIVABLES U BR X
Ng Group Company
= AEE AQH
Sk 2008 2007 2008 2007

SERNF -FTLF CRENF CTRLE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT  TET FER TER

Prepayments B HIE 2,265 900 62 88
Deposits HEA 7,398 2,530 80 19
Other receivables HoAth FE UK BR 3K 1,550 4,433 - -

11,213 7,863 142 107
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. EMEEMARINAIARRE - 5TA L
The financial assets included in the above balances relate MAEeR 2 & B B BT HA M R R ED B
to receivables for which there was no recent history of ZIEWERFN AR -

default.
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27. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR

27. B A FEFTABRERZR

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS rEE
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENEF ZETTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Listed equity investments, EmlRAREE
at market value: BhiE :
Hong Kong BB 8,065 9,162
Elsewhere HAth 115,082 175,398
123,147 184,560

The above equity investments at 30 April 2007 and 2008
were classified as held for trading.

Included in the Group’s equity investments was an amount
of HK$115,082,000 (2007: HK$175,398,000) which
represented approximately a 8% (2007: 9%) equity interest
in the common shares of GobiMin,Inc., a company
incorporated in Canada and listed on the TSX Venture
Exchange.

As at 30 April 2008, certain of the Group’s listed equity
investments in Hong Kong of HK$3,543,000 (2007:
HK$5,203,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 33).

The market value of equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss at the date of approval of these financial
statements was approximately HK$57,657,000.

ANEBRAKRER —_ZZLFR-_ZFT
NFEUA=ZTHERDBERFIEESR -

FFARE B AR E 2 115,082,000/
T (ZZEZE L4 : 175,398,000/87T) -
FEGobiMin, Inc. EfL 2 418% (—FZ
+F 1 9%) #E2E © GobiMin, Inc.A—HE
RIMNERFMERIEREHEZELFR
SERI¥ER ETMZ AR »

MR-BZNENMA=+H  AEEE
F A TTET{EE3,543,0008 T (=&
T+ 4 : 5203,000/87T) 2 WA
BE EREEERTAEBZEITE
BT AR (FH5E33) o

REERERBERERZA - ZFRA
BRERRAFEFABSERZTENS
57,657,000/ Tt °

e (W) MEL Y
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28.

BANK TRUST ACCOUNT BALANCES

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising from its normal
course of business licensed by the SFC. The Group has
classified these clients’ monies as bank trust account
balances under the current assets section of the balance
sheets and recognised the corresponding accounts payable
to the respective clients on the ground that it is liable for
any loss or misappropriation of these client’s monies. The
Group is not permitted to use these clients’” monies to settle
its own obligations.

28. iR ITIEFEEIRF &8k

REBRFERTHARBLELR
P AEREFPRERE S EMETT
ZEBZEFREBREPREL 2K
He REBBUHERPREDER/E
ERERZRBEER N ZRITER
RP&s UREBEEARTEPFKEALZ
EERIBBA LEEZEREM
ERSENTHEATE - AKETHE
NEPREBITEAGZEE -

®
3
8 The carrying amounts of the bank trust account balances RITEAERFPEMCEREREAQTF
2 approximate to their fair values. BHRA °
=3
>3 29.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. BERRELZEEARE
59 AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS EHRITER
ok
S8
g § Group Company
o5 3 AR
g8 2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\FE —TT+F ZEENE —TTtHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT TR FET
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTT 8% 79,843 67,889 144 120
Time deposits T BF 13,613 3,594 = -
93,456 71,483 144 120
Less: Pledged deposits for W RITEERER
banking facilities 7R (f17£33) (13,613) (3,594) - -
(note 33)
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEEER 79,843 67,889 144 120
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29.

30.

“EEN\FHA=TH

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
(continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents and the pledged deposits approximate to their
fair values.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable at the
balance sheet dates, based on the settlement due date, is
as follows:

29.

30.

ReRkBA«SERAKE
EHRITER (&)

FHRRITZRESRBRITE B FFHF
KMEUFBNE - REAKEHRS
TRz EEE BT SRE R
H—HBE=EATE A hREH
Z R HAE B ORI R ERERAEL » 41T
E R NG AR S0 3 0T B R
LB EERTZERIT - REe kRS
FERBMEERER 2 REERE
NFERE -

FE A+ BR K

ANEEREE A ZENERIZEERD
HBEZERESTOT -

Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Current to 1 month BlEAZ= — @& A 221,581 134,103

The accounts payable are unsecured, bear interest at bank
deposit saving rates (2007: bank deposit saving rates) and
repayable on the settlement day of the relevant trades or
upon demand from customers. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s accounts payable approximate to their fair
values.

ENRRRERT  RBITHEEFX
MEFHE (CTTLF - |RITFHEFHK
&) WEARNBREE 2 XWHNKIZ
EPEXREE - AEEENERR K
EEEEAFERES -

e (W) MEL Y

[
A
A
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[
A
AR
=
ﬁ
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31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 31. HMENERIRESER

Group Company
N | NN
2008 2007 2008 2007

“BRN\F “TTLF CBBNF “TTLE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THZ  TET TEx TER

Other payables H e IR K 1,397 612 18 225
Accruals JEsTE M 10,605 7,772 1,234 604
@
3 12,002 8,384 1,252 829
g
5
g Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HA BRI AR E - FH T
2 average term of three months. The Group’s and the BEZRA  AEBRAQG 2 HME
>3 =+ o ++
3 “—(; Company’s other payables and accruals approximate to their NERKREFEREEAFERS -
%é fair values.
§3
58
IShi= :-
83 32. PROMISSORY NOTE 32. AR EE
o0
o
The promissory note was issued in relation to the acquisition EAEBRDIREBE ST LFNHA=
of a 50% equity interest in Precious Source International THEFEREESREEERATZ
Limited during the year ended 30 April 2007. The amount 50% MR AR AT o ZAREEZRE
was fully settled during the year ended 30 April 2008. E_ZEZE N \FONA=ZFTHIFERE
=3

/8 °
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33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK

33. ;T RRITEE

BORROWINGS
Group Company
81| PO
Effective 2008 2007 2008 2007
interest “EENE ERLE “EENE “ERtE
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BRAE(E) 3% ThR Thn T Tt
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEE)\E TEELE ZEE)\E CEEEE
Current k2
Bank loans - secured ROET-EHA 285 5.3 2009 2008 1,328 1,708 - -
= LI I
Trust receipt loans - secured  EENEET—BHR 4,69 - 2008 - 21,609 - - -
Sk
Bank overdrafts - secred  FAIER—HEA 575 - Ondemand - 750 - - -
REX
20,687 1,708 - -
Non-current ik
Bank loans - secured ROET-EHA 2.85 535 2010- 2000-
2015 2015 9,072 9,804 - -
ZE-BFE _5E)EER
Z5-1f 5%
38,759 11,602 - -
Group Company
KEE b NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —ITITLF ZEENF —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET FTET FET
Bank loans and overdrafts AR T O BRI EE
repayable: ZRITERRER !
Within one year or —FRHREL
on demand 29,687 1,708 - -
In the second year FF 1,365 1,618 - -
In the third to fifth years, E=Z2RF
inclusive (BREEEMS) 4,336 4,367 - -
Over five years HBiEREF 3,371 3,909 = -
38,759 11,602 - -

RS LV ES T/ TaeT
LvHE (W WELY

EEE bt
MR
BT
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33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The Group has overdraft facilities and secured bank loans

as at the balance sheet date, which are secured by:

)

(iii)

()

the pledge of time deposits of the honorary chairman of
the Company of HK$2,000,000 (2007: HK$2,000,000)
(note 43);

the pledge of time deposits of the Group of
HK$13,613,000 (2007: HK$3,594,000) (note 29);

the Group’s leasehold land and buildings, which have
an aggregate carrying value at the balance sheet date of
approximately HK$25,104,000 (2007: HK$26,714,000)
(note 15);

the pledge of certain of the Group’s investments in listed
securities of HK$3,543,000 (2007: HK$5,203,000) (note
27); and

personal guarantees executed by the honorary
chairman, a director of the Company and certain
executives of a subsidiary of the Group (note 47(b)).

In addition, the Company has provided corporate guarantees

on certain of the Group’s bank loans and overdraft facilities
of up to HK$54,913,000 (2007: HK$21,602,000) of which
HK$38,723,000 (2007: HK$11,602,000) was utilised as at
the balance sheet date.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest-bearing bank

borrowings approximate to their fair values.

@ AEBERGEEAZEXBENREGEMR
TTERAATSEEER

(i)

(i

(iif)

(iv)

AN

RARBEEREZEBHTFR
2,000,000 T (=TT 4 :
2,000,000 7T) 2 #H # (B 3%
43)

N5 | HATF 5%13,613,0007%8

T (ZEZELF : 3,504,0008
70) Z AR (I 3E29)

AEBZHAETHREEFT R
HEHBZEREBEBRLAELDR
25,104,000/ 7L (ZZZ L4 :
26,714,000/ 7T) (MizE15) :

REEREMBEHFZETRE
3,543,000 L (Z T T +F ¢
5,208,000/ 7T.) 2 1R (M 5
27) + &

HARRIZEBEER —RES
MAEE—HMBARIZET
T BYEH 2 B AR (B3
47(b)) °

ARFRGEEARKEEZETE

TER RS Z IR MR %54,913,000/%8 7T
(ZZEZ+F : 21,602,000 L) 2 A RE
R 138,728,000 T (ZEELF ¢
11,602,000 7T) E#HENA °

AEENESRITEEZREAEREATE

EE=IE
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34. FINANCE LEASES PAYABLE 34. EARERY
The Group leases certain of its property, plant and AEEREXKELERARAEETY
equipment for its business operations. These leases are ¥ BELERE ZEHEANERR
classified as finance leases and have a remaining lease term BIRA - FerTHE A39ME A £591E A
of range from 39 months to 59 months (2007: 52 months). (ZZEZ+F :52@A)TF -
At 30 April 2008, the total future minimum lease payments R-ZZEZNFWMA=+H @ERAY
under finance leases and their present values were as ZHEREBESLBENIRENT -
follows:

Present value of

Minimum minimum lease
lease payments payments
BiEAS BEHSHE
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BR\FE -TTLE —BBNE -IELF T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 ﬂ
FRX  FER  FAR AR e
= ot
Amounts payable under BREREROBERTH iy
finance leases: R 2 308 - = 2
Within one year —FR 294 388 221 378
In the second year EF 292 249 236 228
In the third to fifth years, F-FRF
inclusive (BREEMF) 440 513 377 436
1,026 1,150 834 1,042
Less: Future finance charges B BEREER (192) (108)
Present value of REAERE
lease obligations 834 1,042
Portion classified as SIERE B R 2 51D
current liabilities (221) (378)

Non-current portion JEENERED 1 613 664
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35.

36.

DUE TO MINORITY 35. ROEMRRZFIE, " DH
SHAREHOLDERS/LOAN FROM A BREREX

MINORITY SHAREHOLDER

The amounts due to minority shareholders are unsecured, ROVEBRREZFBIEER - TFE
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. REHTEEENRE -

The loan from a minority shareholder is unsecured, interest-

PEBERERTGERA T\*Jr S 4

free and not repayable within twelve months from the BAREERZE T A AAE:

balance sheet date.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due to minority ROVBERZZBRLEBRRER Y
shareholders and loan from a minority shareholder REEAEQFEES

approximate to their fair values.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 36. ELHIEAE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year AEBZEEBIBERBEREFAZEEH
are as follows: P
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related depreciation
FEREBLEBNE
2008 2007
—ZEENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
At beginning of year RET) 332 3083
Acquisition of subsidiaries U % BT B8 A A 502 -
Charged to the income statement REEHAMGRZ S
for the year (note 10) (FtzE10) 28 29
At end of year RER 862 332
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36. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 36. EEHEE B (&)

(continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$208,833,000 (2007: HK$34,104,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time.

At 30 April 2008, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2007: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries, associates or jointly-controlled entities as the
Group has no liability to additional tax should such amounts
be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

AEBAERBELEZHRERBRE
#17%208,833,0008 7T (ZEZ L F :
34,104,000/ 7T) * 2 F & FR A ERH]
REEHELE BB QR 2 RKERD
A BEERBEEY KRR ZFEE
TU®R  WIEARZEERCEE
R—EBRZMBRR -

RZZEZNFOA=+H  ARAEAE
EHERAEEETHEBAR - BE
REFARZEF D EREL BN Z &
PR TR A B B IE B R 2 BN
R M EEREAKRERIELTHIA
BECEZTLF E) -

AR B 1R R SRS A A 83 4 2 A AR
FISBLASR -

RS LV ES T/ TaeT
LvHE (W WELY
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37. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE 37. R B 281
PAYMENTS
Group Company
rEE FANVNE|
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE —ITTLF ZBENFE —ITTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT TAT FTAERT FAT
At beginning of year REA 3,975 3,159 249 -
(Write-back of provision)/ (BERD) /BE
provision (978) 1,278 (222) 249
Amounts utilised during the year FREH 48 - (462) - -
At end of year RER 2,997 3,975 27 249
Portion classified as SIERE B E .2 20
current liabilities - - - -
Non-current portion FEBIER R 1 2,997 3,975 27 249

The Group provides for the probable future long service
payments expected to be made to employees under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, as further explained
under the heading “Other employee benefits” in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. The provision is based on the best
estimate of the probable future payments which have been
earned by the employees from their services to the Group
to the balance sheet date.

AEEHRBE A RAIEARBRERE
RGN T RE 2 RBRB2IEH
Bim - MBEmRME2.A4THMIE S
MIB MG - BEBEIRIEEER
Ris X EASEEAEACRRAR
HEZFAFEMBNEL 25t -
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38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. lRA
2008 2007
—EENE ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Authorised: EERA
50,000,000,000 50,000,000,0008% (ZEZ+F :
(2007: 50,000,000,000) 50,000,000,000/%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE0.01E L Lmk 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHERA
1,0883,044,000 (2007: 607,566,000) 1,083,044,000/% (ZZZ+4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 607,566,000/%)
EREECOIAE T EBR 10,830 6,076
During the year, the movements in share capital were as FA - BWAZEEHIT -
follows:
()  Pursuant to a conditional sale and purchase agreement () WREBHA-_ZTZELF-—HtH

dated 7 March 2007, Linewear Assets Limited
(“Linewear”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, acquired 40% equity interest in Head &
Shoulders Securities Limited (“H&S”), for a total
consideration of HK$16,000,000 which were satisfied
(i) as to HK$3,000,000 in cash and (ii) as to
HK$13,000,000 by the issue and allotment by the
Company of a total of 101,960,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company (“Shares”) (note 42(c)(ii)). The acquisition was
completed on 6 June 2007 and the details of the
acquisition are set out in a circular to the shareholders
of the Company and in an announcement dated
21 March 2007 and 6 June 2007.

ZBERGEERZE  AREIZE
E M B A FlLinewear Assets
Limited ([Linewear] ) U BBt & 35
HBRAE ([BEFEH])40%,K
RiEm - A E 716,000,000/
T AT AR XA

(3,000,000 TR & T &
(i)13,000,0007% 7T B AN A B EE 1T
N e 24 101,960,000 4 A A
AR FREECOIE L LB
& ([A1n ) 3R 2 75 =2 A (9=
42(c)(i) - WEEEEN_ZTZT+
FRNANBEK - BEAFEER
HEA-—_TZT+F=-A=-1+—H
BARRIRRE 2B EABAC
ETELFXRNANBZAMA -
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(il

(i)

Pursuant to a placing agreement dated 30 May 2007
between the Company and VC Brokerage Limited (the
“Placing Agent”), the Company agreed to place
through the Placing Agent 120,000,000 new shares
of the Company at the placing price of HK$0.42 per
share. The placing was completed on 22 June 2007
and net proceed of approximately HK$49,000,000 was
received on 22 June 2007. Details of the placing are
set out in a circular to the shareholders of the Company
dated 5 June 2007.

Pursuant to a conditional sale and purchase agreement
dated 17 December 2007, Linewear further acquired
the remaining 60% equity interest in H&S, for a total
consideration of HK$90,000,000 which was fully
satisfied by the issue and allotment by the Company
of a total of 253,518,000 Shares (note 42(c)(ii)). The
acquisition was completed on 2 April 2008 and the
details of the acquisition are set out in a circular to the
shareholders of the Company dated 22 February 2008.

38. & (&)

(il

(i)

BREAQNFEHERFSFER AR
([BEEREBDITYZEHA-ZT
TtFRA=-tHZESEHR
RAGRESEAREREAER
042 T2 EBREEARRF
120,000,000 %% - FeEHIEE
RZEE+FNAZ+ZBFE
o WR—ZEELF AT
B Y 2| Fr 18 5% H ¥ & &
49,000,000/ 7T © A& FIHFF1E
HRBEHAE_ZZELFAAAHA
BMARRREZ KA o

BREBHA-ZTT+F+_A+
+tBZ2BERHEEDRZ -
Linewearift — 2 I B & B H H
BEe0N AR BREA
90,000,000/ 7T + WIAFBBAR
AT RALE A $£253,518,0000%
BmzA 28 (K
42(c)(ii)) - WEFBENR_ZZ)N
FOAZHREKR * BHEFBHAR
BEA-—ZEZEN\F_A=-1+=H
BMARRREZ KA o



Notes to Financial Statements

B 35 ¥R R M AL

30 April 2008 —ZEZN\EMA=+H

in note 39 to the financial statements.

RMIFE39 °

38. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) IR (&)
A summary of the transactions during the year with reference KB2EARRNG LB BETRAZE
to the above movements in the Company’s issued share B FRAZRZBERT :
capital is as follows:
Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BB [=%<i) i)
RSB [N RER @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET TET
At 1 May 2006 RZZZREFHA—H 607,566,000 6,076 - 6,076
2007 movement “ETLFE - - - - |
Wy H
=t
At 30 April 2007 and BA_7 Z+ENA=TA + 2
1 May 2007 “E2T+FRHA—H 607,566,000 6,076 - 6,076 ‘@‘]I @
0
= ot
New issue (notes (i) and (i) B 37T (B 5E ) K (i) 355,478,000 3,554 138,251 141,805 j; S
Placement (note (ii) B & (P EE (i) 120,000,000 1,200 49,200 50,400 = 2
1,083,044,000 10,830 187,451 198,281
Share issue expenses BHETHS - - (762) (762)
At 30 April 2008 RZEZENEFNA=Z1H 1,083,044,000 10,830 186,689 197,519
Share options IR R
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included RAFEREE 2 FBRHR Y B W
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 39. BB R R 2
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may, on
or before 3 March 2012, grant options to eligible
participants, including the Company’s directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to
the Group, customers of the Group, and any minority
shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme
became effective on 4 March 2002 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue at anytime. No share options have
been granted under the Scheme since its adoption. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the exercise date. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at anytime or
with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

AR RI8R ST — YA AR A A B (T s
) EEREAEEZREEE
BBz ABMSRERAADRD
% -

REZETE > ARBEEARN _F—
“HFEZAZHRZAIRAERSEE
(BRARRESE  AEEEMWES
AEEEMIRBHEER  ARER
LA R AN 2 R B I8 2 B 2 AE AR 2 Bl
R)BRHLBRE - st _TT—F
—AMBRER  YHZAEFKA
Mt AR AT ABUBSEL &
FIBRAN ©

IR AT B AE R 3R W RITE
ZBEEHE - ETERESHRND &
ZIEARRERDETRMI10% - B
R ZETBIAR - X ERIREA AT 813K
HEMERE - EERT—EAR
BEZTERAELAER2EERY
ZEBREREERNRABKE - UK
NRARTTEEMZEETRN1%S
R o AR BT R BTG LR ER
ZHBERE RINARBRRERRKS
B -

AARBIES  ETBTHAER 2
RS WE 2 EABEARLER
B BAREARNRBIELIFRITESL
JE

EAN - R PAERI+ — (8 A BiE A [ AR
RAEAETBME  BUFRTESTKRK
FZ BB AR L 2 E B RER
R BRAARBERDETR
70.1%3% 4 {8 #2 485,000,000/ 7T (1R
BARBBRORRLBEREZERZE
®ETH) - AIMARAERRERRA
gLy -



Notes to Financial Statements

B 35 ¥R R M AL

30 April 2008 —ZEZN\EMA=+H

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 39. BE IR #E5T 8] (&)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors of the Company, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than
10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors of the Company, but may not be less than the
higher of (i) the SEHK closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average
SEHK closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

40. RESERVES

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 1994 prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares (the “Reorganisation”), over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor.

BRETHREBERES21IARE
- MR EAREARABINEHE
TZEBARE - EERHBEREZ1TE
HHAARREFTERE - YAl R —RE
TTERITE - YRR BARER
AT FE R -

BREZITEEHARRESETE -
BAFER()ANR B I IR BB Rk
= AR WHE » RiARBIK
MR EBEZEFE N A M A ER 5 B E
R FHARTEME ZRRE

40. &S

(a) &=&£E

AEERAFERATFE
BREMEEZEH2IINGEEED
K -

REBE 2 A BBRIBER AR FR
D EMAMRIE— WA OE 2 K E
B (TE4]) Pris s E 2 Rk
EE  BHALXREmETZ
ARARRMEEZEZHE -
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40. RESERVES (continued) 40. f#1& (&)
(a) Group (continued) (a) &8
Pursuant to the relevant laws in Mainland China, a RIER B AR HBEEED - RN&
portion of profits of the Group’s associates and jointly- EINESEET DN vl NS DY
controlled entities in Mainland China, subject to the %lJu:%Z*B@/ﬁnﬂEBZE HE
discretion of their respective boards of directors, were BrlEEGZRATRE KRG
transferred to the general reserve. Subject to certain e ETERPBEKREBEBE
restrictions set out in the relevant regulations in BIRBEAR ZHABEERRESE
Mainland China and the articles of associations of the FTREZERAT - —RFEETA
relevant companies, the general reserve may be used EHIEBIR B RMEER -
% to set off losses or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.
8
g (b) Company (b) AHF
=]
=
> i Share
g & premium  Contributed Retained
%‘;U g account surplus earnings Total
58 ReuEE  4ARE  RERA #E
S HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
g& T FETL FET T
At 1 May 2006 “ZERFRA-H - 30,992 22,697 53,689
Loss for the year if“ E#E - - (8,973 (8,973
Proposed final 2007 dividend ~ —EZT+FEZRIKS
(note 13) (P7E13) - - (4,977) (4,977)
At 30 April 2007 R-ZTT+EMA=1A - 30,992 8,747 39,739
New issue of Shares METRS
(notes 38()) and (i) (B 2238 1) B i) 138,251 - - 138,251
Placement of Shares AR B 1n (P 5E38ii)
(note 38(i) 49,200 - - 49,200
Share issue expenses RIDBITRX (762) - - (762)
Profit for the year EFER - - 133,631 133,631
Interim 2008 dividend “ZE\ERERE
(note 13) (M13) - - (4,148) (4,148)

At 30 April 2008 —ZT)/\FWA=1H 186,689 30,992 138,230 355,911
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40. RESERVES (continued) 40. f#E (4B)

(b) Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the Company’s contributed
surplus is currently not available for distribution.

41. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 10 May 2006, the Group established Precious Source

International Limited (“Precious Source”), a jointly-controlled MAR([GEBH]) KL —FERE ‘@‘]1 H
entity with a company (the “JV Partner”), for the purpose of FIEHEEREBREER AR ([BIR]) - ﬂ
investing in a 15% equity interest in #7158 F{=, which BH T RIRE THEREZ15%KRA \\\g
operates a gold mine in Xinjiang. The Group’s initial Ham o FMERERIEBLESESE :@%
investment in Precious Source was approximately %o AEBERERZEVIREENAR %%
HK$4,036,000. On 24 April 2007, the Group acquired the 4,036,000/ c RZEELFIHAZ g’*ﬁ

remaining 50% equity interest in Precious Source from the
JV Partner for approximately HK$4,036,000 in the form of
a promissory note issued to the JV Partner (note 32). Upon
completion of the acquisition, Precious Source became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

On 16 August 2006, the Group established a 99% owned
subsidiary, ME XEE & EE R A F (“Nan Ling”). Nan
Ling will mainly be engaged in the mining and processing
of metals. The Group’s share of capital contribution had
been paid up to HK$998,000 as at the balance sheet date.

(b) 27 (&)

ARBZEABBRIEARRRIRE
BHEMBENB AR 2 EERE
FRBE R M BT 2 N R AIAX
MEEZHE - REARE—N
N—FREDE (EIER]) » NRF
ZHABHRIRE A BRIKE

41. £ 5B

RZZETZXNFAATHE  AEHEE—

TIUA - ANEBE LAE1T7494,036,0007%
TERAEBRTEERHE 2 EAER
B WEEEIRH T50%M AR (M
32) - RZBUHETTR & - EIRK AR
EB2EMBAR -

RZZBZERFENATRE - AEEK
M —EME99% R < B A BIFE X
BEeeBERAR([ME]) - EE
HEBRZARMEESBERS - 1
HBEB  AEBEZEELEDHE
998,000/ Tt °
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATION 4. ¥% 8 6F (&)
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(continued)

On 6 June 2007, the Group acquired 40% equity interest in
H&S, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and is a
licensed corporation authorised to carry on Type 1 (dealing
in securities) regulated activities under Part V of the SFO,
for a total consideration of HK$66,214,000. The
consideration was satisfied by cash of HK$3,000,000 and
HK$63,214,000 by the allotment of 101,960,000 new
shares of the Company. Details of the acquisition are set
out in a circular to the shareholders of the Company and in
an announcement dated 21 March 2007 and 6 June 2007.

On 13 June 2007 and 20 August 2007, H&S enlarged its
issued share capital by issuing 9,000,000 new shares and
10,000,000 new shares, respectively, at HK$1 each to its
shareholders. The Group was proportionally allotted
3,600,000 new shares and 4,000,000 new shares,
respectively, which were payable in full on the allotment
dates. On 27 March 2008, H&S was granted a license from
the SFC to carry on Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under Part V of
the SFO.

On 2 April 2008, the Group further acquired the remaining
60% of the issued share capital of H&S at a consideration
of approximately HK$78,591,000. The consideration was
fully satisfied by the issue of 253,518,000 new shares of
the Company to the vendors. Details of the acquisition are
set out in a circular to the shareholders of the Company
dated 22 February 2008.

R-FTLFARA  AEEER
866,214,000/ ST W g B & 38 540% A%
iz - BEES A HREBEMK
M2 AE] - WAREE SRS EGIE
VIR BEE 1 (BHER D) ZHREED
ZEHEEEE  c BERENRS
3,000,000/ 7T X fit # 101,960,000 4
ARG 163,214,000/ T2 T A X
o WEEBE HFBERNARAZZEE
+tF=ZAZ+—HEARARIREZBE
FBBAE-—ZEELFNASNBZAM
W °

R-ZEZLFENA+T=ZBR-_ZTEL
FNAZTH BEZHFBEES A
ERRBETER@OEIATZ
9,000,0008% #f7 A% 52 10,000,000/% # A&
IEAH B BT - REBIRL
2 Rl A 83,600,000 A% 3 AR &
4,000,0000% ¥ % - AR BC3E B EA R 21
BN MRZFBENF=ZA=-F+LH"
e rEREEEREREES MDY
EROIBVE R FF R (GLEFFIR MK
BERIRENBRHEEETE)XRE
BN HEER -

R-ZZZENEMA-H  AEBEUR
E#4978,591,000/8 L i — S W &
BEHFHBEOBDHITRA - BERE
LATA) & 7 3 17253,518,00088 A 2 &) #7
BzAFRE2EZM - WHEEEZFS
HNEA-ZENF_A -+ _H
BARRRIRE 2 HA o
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATION 4. ¥ 8 6F (&)

(continued)

RWBRHE MRS REE

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

H&S as at the date of acquisition and the corresponding

BBz AFEMERERKENNE

carrying amounts immediately before the acquisition were JEZREMEWT -
as follows:
Fair value Previous
recognised carrying
on acquisition amount
A Uk B By BAfE
BRAZATE REE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FH&T FHT
Property, plant and equipment L EIN 15 5,922 5,922 ‘@‘] "
Intangible assets BIVEE 18 187 187 b
Other long term assets HhREEE 400 400 X §
Bank trust account balances IRITIEFERR P AR 46,704 46,704 =
Cash and cash equivalents HekREEEIER 27,035 27,035 ﬁg
Accounts receivable & Wi BR R 56,740 56,740 bt
Prepayments, deposits and ERRIE - FTek
other receivables b fE AR 5K 5,148 5,148
Accounts payable JERTER SR (82,591) (82,591)
Other payables and accruals HaENBRERRETER (8,435) (8,435)
Tax payable FERTBIIE (1,631) (1,631)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE (502) (502)
48,977 48,977
Goodwill on acquisition WHEAZHE 16 108,185
157,162
Satisfied by: AR
Reclassification from interests /N o 3
in associates to interests ESaR ]
in subsidiaries ME ARz 78,571
New issue of shares TR, 78,591

157,162
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATION
(continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

4. X3S of &)

WEHeRErcRe MRS FHEER

in respect of the acquisition of H&S is as follows: MAFREZ T -
HK$’000
FHT
Cash and bank balances acquired  FTUgiEIR & K IR1T45 64 27,035
Net inflow of cash and WENB AT zRE
cash equivalents in respect of NIReFEIEB
the acquisition of subsidiaries MAFEE 27,035

Since its acquisition, H&S contributed approximately
HK$3,830,000 to the Group’s turnover and HK$16,000 to
the consolidated loss for the year ended 30 April 2008.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
year, the revenue from continuing operations of the Group
and the loss of the Group for the year would have been
HK$197,803,000 and HK$42,476,000 respectively.

BEWEBR  BEEHFRBE_Z
ZENFHA=Z+THLEFEALAEERT
AL EEFR 43,830,000/ 7T M 4R A BT 1R
#716,00078 7T °

HMRENETEH  AEEZFELK
EEBBANKER 2 NEEEEE
7 711 /%197,803,000/% 7T 2 42,476,000
BT e
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M. %56 (8

41. Business Combination (continued)

On 14 October 2006, the Group acquired a 50% equity
interest in Lee Fung Hong (Cheung’s) Forex Dealers Limited
(“LFH Forex”), previously a jointly-controlled entity of the
Group. LFH Forex is principally engaged in broking and
dealing of forex contracts. Further details of the acquisition
are set out in a circular and an announcement of the
Company dated 6 October 2006 and 17 October 2006,
respectively. The purchase consideration for the acquisition
of HK$11,547,000 was in the form of cash and was paid at
the acquisition. Upon completion of the acquisition, LFH
Forex became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
during the year ended 30 April 2007.

On 14 December 2006, the Group acquired a 100% equity

interest in CHINA GOLD (Precious Metal) Strategic WErEe (E2B) RBKREBRA LM
Investment Limited (“China Gold”). China Gold was mainly Bl([PEE]) 2100%#Ez - RS E ﬂ
engaged in gold bullion trading but had ceased operation ENEFLEE  BEREE_ZZ \\\g
subsequent to becoming a subsidiary of the Group during +tHFMNA=THILEFEAKRBAIEE :iﬁ%
the year ended 30 April 2007. The purchase consideration JHBARRKRIEEE - BERER %%
of HK$416,000 was settled in cash and represented a 416,000/ 70 * AR EHEA T - H g’*ﬁ

consideration of HK$1,000 for the entire outstanding share
capital of China Gold and a consideration of HK$415,000
for acquiring a shareholder’s loan with a face value of
HK$2,125,000 due by China Gold to one of the shareholders
(the “Former Shareholder”). A director of the Company had
made advances to China Gold aggregating to
HK$1,202,000 on behalf of the Former Shareholder during
the year, which formed part of the shareholder’s loan amount
acquired by the Group.

RZZEZERNF+ATMA - XEEK
BAEE R R H R LT (R
R)EXER AR ([FMETEX] 2
50% s o FIBITEXF B/ BINE
BHREREE - BAREZE—F
HEPRHRARRNR T RE+
ARNBERZZEZENF+A+EHTE
CHREHEERAERN - WEZHENRE
11,547,000 7T Jh A IR & 2 S R UK B8
R WETKE  REBEEZZET
+tFNA=ZFTHILEFEAR - FETE
E¥RABAEEBZ2ENBAR -

RZBEZEREF+_ATHABE *&H

11,0008 TTHEERFPE S 2 EE 1T
B - HEp K (E415,00008 T AT E S
SIS EE2,125,000/8 T 2 IR E R
AT E AR — R ([RTARER]) 2 3K
B TR ARA—UESBRKZA
PR A R B & 8444 H£1,202,00008
T BERREBERNAEERSRREE
Rz —EH o
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41. Business Combination (continued) 4. £XK S0t (B
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of REEWEMBEE  BF - FI27E

XRTESZAHREERABZIA
FEMT

Precious Source, LFH Forex and China Gold as at the date
immediately before the acquisition were as follows:

Fair value recognised on acquisition Carrying amount

REBEEBR2ATE BEE
Precious Precious
Source  China Gold  LFH Forex Source  China Gold LFH Forex
2R hEE  RIEMEX 2R hEE FEMEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
ThEL ThEL ThEL T THEL TAL
(/2]
2 Property, plant and % BRR&E
- equipment - 437 258 - 487 258
g Other long term assets EHRHEE 8,072 - - 8,072 - -
5 Equity investments at fair value BATERA
>3 through profit or loss BRECRARE - - 1,089 - - 1,089
e § Bank trust account balances ROTEXRFER - - 44,872 - - 44,872
73 Cash and bank balances ReRRks - 102 11,679 - 102 11679
88 Accounts receivable EWRER - - 7,700 - - 7,700
3 ,?l Prepayments, deposit and BRHE ek
S35 other receivables Rt RAE - 572 268 - 572 268
S8 Accounts payable B - (238) (45,215) - (238 (45,215)
Other payables and accruals B ENESREER - (372) (573) - (372) (573)
Finance lease payable EREERY - (85) - - (85) -
Amounts due to a former REBSAIRE L FE
shareholder of China Gold - (2,129) - - (2,125) -
8,072 (1,709) 20,098 8,072 (1,709) 20,098
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEIRE - - 1,498
8,072 (1,709) 21,59
Satisfied by: AR
Cash Be - 416 11,547
Promissory note FAEE 4036 - -
Reclassification from interest in HEZHCEL
jointly-controlled entities BRENAEA
to interest in subsidiaries MBAR s 4,036 . 10,049
Amount assigned to a wholly-owned AEZEAEE -2 E
subsidiary of the Group WELRZHE - 2,125) -
8,072 (1,709) 21,59
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41. Business Combination (continued) 4. £ S0t (B

An analysis of the net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash HE_ZT+FONA=THILEFE -
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries for WERB AR REeNAEEEER
the year ended 30 April 2007 is as follows: A ORE) FEzTAT
Precious
Source China Gold LFH Forex
2R TEE FETEZE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Cash consideration HeRE - (416) (11,547)
Cash and bank balances Uk IR & R IRTT 4584
acquired - 102 11,679
Net inflow/(outflow) of cash WK B AR ZHRE ‘jg ;H.
and cash equivalents NS5 EIEE rf
in respect of the acquisition ZRA (i) 58 ng
of subsidiaries - (314) 132 @ ﬁ
&
A
Since its acquisition, no turnover and profit were contributed BHIWER  ERREE-FTZT+ o
to the Group by Precious Source for the year ended 30 April FOA=THILFETELAAEES
2007. Had the combination taken place at the beginning of REHEE I RN - WRBEZTZT+
the year ended 30 April 2007, the revenue from continuing FUA=THIEFEFNETEH
operations of the Group and the profit of the Group for the REBZFAEKSEEBFRARKE
year ended 30 April 2007 would have been HK$124,445,000 REBEE-ZEZE+FHNA=THILFE
and HK$64,317,000 respectively. 2 M E S Rl /124,445,000 7T K&

64,317,000/ 7T °
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41. Business Combination (continued)
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Since its acquisition, China Gold contributed HK$1,355,000
to the Group’s turnover and a loss of HK$274,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 30 April 2007. Had
the combination taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 30 April 2007, the revenue from continuing operations
of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year ended
30 April 2007 would have been HK$124,588,000 and
HK$62,196,000 respectively.

Since its acquisition, LFH Forex contributed HK$10,285,000
to the Group’s turnover and HK$3,409,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 30 April 2007. Had
the combination taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 30 April 2007, the revenue from continuing operations
of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year ended
30 April 2007 would have been HK$119,069,000 and
HK$55,795,000 respectively.

BEWEIAR REE_FTT+FMA
ZTHLEFE AR AELEETK
1,355,000/ 7T <« & 8 - WEERE R
F3EK 274,000 T 2 EE - WREZE
TEEHFNA=THIEFEFYIET
At AEBZHERLEEBRARK
SEHE_TTLFOA=THLFE
2w M ED R A124,588,0000%8 7T &
62,196,000/ 7T °

BHKEBIR  REE-ZTZT+FINA
=T HILFE  FETEXEAEET
2K10,285,0008 7T 2 &350 - WHERE
% M| 5 58 3,409,00058 7T 2 S5 | o iR
HE_ZZT+FNA=TRHILFEF
EITE  NEBHELEEBKBA
MARERHE—_TEZELFWA=1+HI
F[E 2 FIfE S Bl A119,069,000/8 7T
X255,795,000/8 7T °
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42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

42. HERESRERME

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries &K A |
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Net assets disposed of: FTEEFEE -
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 311 -
Available-for-sale investments AHHEZERE - 278
Accounts receivable FEUBR 3K 10 -
Less: impairment on B AR FURE
accounts receivable (10) -
Prepayments, deposits and FERNRIE - ek
other receivables HAh JE Y BR 5R 458 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEIER 6 -
Finance leases payable FET B E M AY (68) -
Tax payable FEHLIE = (8,753)
707 (8,475)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMH B A B Z Uz 50 8,775
757 300
Satisfied by: SENDIE
Cash B 757 300

e (W) MEL Y
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42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (a)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries

42. B ERERK T (E)

HEKNB AR (&)

HEMBARIZAZ LREFE
HERAFEINMOT :

is as follows:
2008 2007
—EENF —TELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Cash consideration HeaRE 757 300
Cash and bank balances FTt &R RIBITHEH
disposed of (6) -
Net inflow of cash and HEMNBARIZRE KX
cash equivalent in respect of REFEBERAFE
the disposal of subsidiaries 751 300

The results of the subsidiaries disposed of during the
two years ended 30 April 2008 and 2007 had no
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
turnover and (loss)/profit after tax for these years.

Deemed disposal of partial interest in a (b)
subsidiary

During the year, the gain on deemed disposal of partial
interest in a subsidiary amounting to HK$104,000
resulted from the issuance of new shares of a
subsidiary to minority shareholders.

BE-ZZT)/\FR-_ZFTLFN
A=+TRHItMEFEANMRLENWN
BRAZEEHAEEZEFE

ZIERAEEBERDIL (BB,
M EERTE -

REHHENBQ RO ER

FR - HEALEMB ARG
2 Wz A104,0008 7T+ TY
HR DR RETZIB AR
AR ELE -
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42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(c) Major non-cash transactions

(0

(i)

During the year, the Group entered into finance
lease arrangements in respect of property, plant
and equipment with a total capital value at the
inception of the leases of HK$241,000 (2007:
HK$1,051,000).

During the year, the Group acquired a 100%
equity interest in H&S. A portion of the
consideration was satisfied by way of issue of
shares (notes 38(i) and (iii)).

During the year, a receivable from a director of a
subsidiary of HK$195,000 (2007: HK$2,000,000)
was offset against a director fee payable to him
by the subsidiary of the Company.

43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts, which are

secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 33

to the financial statements.

2. GERTRERMKE (&)

(c)

FEFREXRS

(0

(i)

FA - AEERFT LR
4B R{EA241,0008 7T (=
TETAHF 1,051,000/ 7T)
ZE - BRE REEET A
BT -

FA - AEBREBHE FS
100% Az o HHRE
LABE 1T R AR 2 77 = s A-F (Bt
FE38(i) K (iii)) °

FR-WBRAR—REEZZ
RF195,0008 T (ZTF
% : 2,000,000/ 7T) © AR
HEA R RN BE A RIER T
EECEENMS o

43. HREE

AEBENEEERM 2 RITERE
X2 FHBEHN M RRMIEESS
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44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 44. IR E &
At the balance sheet date, the Company had contingent REEH » NRBREM S REIEE
liabilities not provided for in the financial statements as EREZHIARBENT :
follows:
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Guarantees for borrowing and B ARFMEEE R
% guarantee facilities granted EREELHAZER
] to subsidiaries 66,203 33,364
5
§’- At the balance sheet date, the banking facilities granted to REEB » AARQAIRRITIEL R
§ ?; the subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks mMETFHEBARZETEEETHRY
>3 by the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately 38,723,000 L (ZEE L F :
g5 HK$38,723,000 (2007: HK$11,602,000). 11,602,000/ 72) ©
SRt
28 45. OPERATING LEASE 45, BEBN T HE
ARRANGEMENTS
mem The Group leases certain of its office properties under AEERBELHEOTHERAETH
S operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are REMHE - BEWEHEPNF—ZER

negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years. F o
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45. OPERATING LEASE 45. REBRN L (&)
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future AEBRGEEARE Ty EFEEE 2
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating PRI E OB N 2 RREIE
leases falling due as follows: Me@BENT
2008 2007
—EENEF ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 13,554 6,410
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFLFT (BEERWE) 11,011 2,074
24,565 8,484 |
3 H
=t
e
- o
46. COMMITMENTS 46. Lﬁ,g
0
= ot
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in Br £ P R 457t 2 48 & 1H 49 5a f; S
note 45 above, the Group had the following commitments S REER  AEBZEAGEWAT ¢ w e

at the balance sheet date:

(@) HK$12,558,000 (2007: HK$67,709,000) and @@ REER ERBEERKAGIL
HK$162,174,000 (2007: HK$334,642,000) in respect CERFEESEHRINEGH
of the net open position of bullion contracts and forex 2 IEIER12,558,0008 T (2
contracts undertaken in the ordinary course of + % :67,709,0008 L) &
business existing at the balance sheet date. 162,174,000 (ZE T+ 5F -

334,642,000/ 7T) °

(o)  Approximately RMB700,000 (2007: RMB700,000) for (b) #HARM700,000L(ZZF
the acquisition of a mining exploration right, which is F : AR¥700,0007T) F A UEE
contracted but not provided for. K (BAAERERI QB RE

#) -

() HK$400,000 (2007: Nil) for the acquisition of a (c) 400,0008 L (ZEZ+LF : )
computerised operation system for forex and bullion AR RINE & & & FEHWIE S
segment, which is contracted but not provided for. LI EZR S (A RERTHE

RER)



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR R M AT

30 April 2008 —ZEZEN\FWMA=+H

46. COMMITMENTS (continued) 46. #% (&)

(d) Pursuant to a distributorship agreement entered by ) BEAEER-_ZZTN\FLNAZ
the Group on 23 April 2008, the Group was committed T=REIN 2R AEE
to pay a security deposit of US$200,000 for being EERREREEZNRES
granted a dealership right and to purchase motor 200,000 7T * WD HEEE
vehicles from the distributor at minimum value of BEKEDHL13,471,000E T2
approximately US$13,471,000. AE o

Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company did bR EXFr#EBEEIN  REER - A&

not have any other significant commitments as at the [ Kz 78 2% R A AE fa] H 4th B8 K&

balance sheet date. o
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS A7. BEEBEALT 2R 5

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (@ MRPBFREMBIFIHIRS
the financial statements, the Group had the following O REBRFRNEGREEAL
material transactions with related parties during the ETZERRSGAT :
year:
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETTLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET AT
Rental income received from B —FEEBEQARZ
a related company Ha WA (i) 20 12
Rental expense paid to ENEHEERRZ |
related companies HeRX (ii) 856 1,482 :g ;H.
i
—+. - ﬁ
Employment compensation ENARRIESZ ‘@‘]1 i
paid to the close family BERXFBZREERE @E
members of the directors of ﬁf;
the Company 1,769 1,151 i 2l
Dividend income received from U HL — RSB & A &) 2
an associate B B A - 720
Profit on disposal of HEETWE  BEK
certain property, plant and BETHB AR
equipment to a director of —REEFZHMN
a subsidiary 24 -
Interest received from B — @ E 2R E 2 F B
an associate 81 89
Interest received from B —EERZESI P EWE 2 FIE
a jointly-controlled entity 202 169
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

the financial statements, the Group had the following

material transactions with related parties during the

year (continued):

Notes:

(i)

Rental income was received from a related company
with a common director, based on the rate mutually
agreed by both parties.

The Company paid rental expenses to related
companies for two properties, one of which is owned
by Mr. and Mrs. Haywood Cheung and the other is
owned by Mr. Haywood Cheung and Mr. Stanley
Cheung. The rental charges were based on the
agreements entered into between the Company and
the corresponding related companies.

(b)  Other transactions with related parties:

(0

During the year ended 30 April 2007, there were
occasions where the Group received payments
from a director of the Company, and in turn made
payments to certain individuals and companies
which the director was related to and has interest
therein, respectively. The aggregate amount of
such transactions was HK$5,162,181. Details of
the transaction are set out in an announcement
dated 11 September 2007.

A motor vehicle acquired during the year ended
30 April 2007 at a consideration of HK$980,000
was held in trust by a close family member of a
director of the Company.

47. BEBEEA LT 22X 5 (8)

(@ BREBRREMMWTHFI LIRS
Sh - REEREFRNEAFREEAL
ETZEARRZWNT (&) -

fi s

(i

H—2EEHRZEREQT
WEHE WA - HEBATIE
REZHER L REE -

RRBAMBYEABRBER
AXNEERAX - AP -8
ERREREERKAES -
AEYEAREBREERE
BELEES - HBERNAE
KA R RIERAEARBER RN
RIS Z Bk o

b) HEARMEALZHMRS:

(i)

HE-_ZTT+FWA=+H
IEFE  AEBEREAR
Al —RESWEGIE - A&
ARlmE TEARBE=Z
StFNA=ZTHIEFER
ZESE@E AT RBAZ
EEHEAREARIXAR
H ZERGIBEBA
5,162,181 7T - K 5 2 7
BHEHN—FEZLFNA+—
HZRAMA -

HE-PTLFMA=TA
L4 - BAR{HO80,000/8 7T
gz — W TE R AR —
BEE Y ERREAEES
R -
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47. BERBEA LT 2R 5 (8)

(continued)
(b)  Other transactions with related parties (continued): by HEBEEATZHMRZS (&) :
(i) The banking facilities granted to a subsidiary of (i) AEE-FENBAREXRT
the Group are secured by a bank deposit of ZRITEERARRZRE
HK$2,000,000 (2007: HK$2,000,000) granted by IFRBLEZRAER
the honorary chairman of the Company and 2,000,000 L (ZEZ&+
personal guarantees executed by the honorary F 1 2,000,000 70) KA
chairman and a director of the Company, and ABBEIER—RESZUR
certain executives of a subsidiary of the Group. AEE-—FHMBARETE
ETHABRME 2 EAER
TEHER -
(iv) On 2 April 2008, the Group acquired the vy RZZFEZENFEOA=ZH K
remaining 60% equity interest in H&S from certain EEMETHEMEATIE ¥
related parties. Detalils of the acquisition are set 6 BH 2 B T 60%R A ﬁ;“.
out in a circular to the shareholders of the o WHBFEIE %W\fgg rf
Company dated 22 February 2008. FZAZ+ZBHBARA Lﬁ@
A2 BEP o e
&
A
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties: ) BHEBEATZREERTE =
()  Detail of the Group’s loans to/from and balances () REER ~EBHT K
with its jointly controlled entities and associates as BEHERZES DR E R
at the balance sheet date are included in notes 20 Al B R B E P 5
and 21 to the financial statements, respectively. & P& NT 24 ﬁ? =2
DRI ER R B 75 R 3R B 520 K
21 °
(i)  Details of the Group’s balances with a related (i) AEEE—FZFEEALR
party and minority shareholders are included in DERR 2 EHREFE D RIH
notes 23 and 35 to the financial statements, PR 7% ¥ & B 7523 1% 35 ©
respectively.
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the d AEEFrZEERABZHE
Group:
The directors are the key management of the EEZERARAETBEEEAB - &F
Company. Further details of directors’ emoluments are EEHME— S FBEHR TSR

included in note 8 to the financial statements. KWL ©
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. FEfIB AR Z2F1E

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the REEBR  XRRIEZEWMBARZF

balance sheet date were as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up ordinary

BT

Percentage of

establishment and share capital/  equity attributable
operations registered capital to the Group
Name BMEY/BY CRTRCHLER KEBESRK Principal activities
g &% RE£YE  RA/EMEAZEE BAk TEER
% Cheer Gain International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 Investment holding
2 BEARERAT &% 10072 BALHK
z3
% § Clear Smart Investments British Virgin Islands/ US$100 60 Investment holding
(‘é §_ Limited Hong Kong 100% T REER
58 KBRLED/
Sa
Cheung’s Gold Traders Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 Metal broking and trading
| RREXBRAA BE 5,000,000/ 70 TBRERER
R
. Cheung’s Securities Brokers Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 Securities and
Limited BE 10,000,000% 7T futures contracts
RREFERAR broking and trading
REREE
Champion Source Development Hong Kong HK$100 100 Investment holding
Limited BE 10087 REZR
BRERERAT
Excel Vision Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 Property holding for
FREREBAF B 1,000% 1 rental purposes

nESEFLERE
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. T EM B A T 2 515 ()

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up ordinary

Percentage of

establishment and share capital/  equity attributable
operations registered capital to the Group
Name BMEY/BY ERTRCHESER KEBELERE Principal activities
£ REEtE RE/EREFzEE BAL TEXH
Firstmount International Limited*  British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong E REER
RERUEE/
BE
Head & Shoulders Securities Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100 Securities broking and ‘@‘JI A
Limited E 30,000,007 trading and ?
e BFBRAR asset management LB
BEEEREER 5
agEE 03
Head & Shoulders Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Insurance broking and
Asset Management Limited B8 1,000,000 1T consultancy services
HABEEEBRAR R ERE K& AR
Lee Fung Hong Bullion Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100 Property holding
METTERBRAT Bk 30,000,000 7 ESS
Lee Fung Hong (Cheung’s) Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Metal broking and trading
Bullion Limited BE 1,000,000 7T cBREREE
MET(RK) 2EFRAA
Lee Fung Hong (Cheungs) Hong Kong HK$100,010,000 100 Forex contracts broking and
Forex Dealers Limited B 100,010,000% 7T trading
MET(RK) EXERAA MNERNBEREE
Mint Capital Assets Management Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 Metal trading and
Limited Bk 10,000,000/ 7T property holding
RTEEEBRBRAF cREERVERA
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. T EM B A T 2 5+ 15 ()

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up ordinary

Percentage of

establishment and share capital/  equity attributable
operations registered capital to the Group

Name AWK/ BT ERTREALZER KEBEGERE Principal activities

£ REXHE RE/EMEFZEE BOl TEXH

Multilever Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$10 100 Investment holding

g Hong Kong 10%7T REER
g KBRLHE/
g 5%

g

§ i Precious Source International British Virgin Islands/ US$10,000 100 Investment holding

5 § Limited Hong Kong 10,000% 7 BAER
g3 ERARERA HERLHE/

R3

§ g Serrano Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 Motor vehicle trading

BB 20,000 7T ABEE

Simsen Capital Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 Money lending

AU BRERRAR BE 1,000 1T HE

Simsen (China) Investment British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 Investment holding

Limited Hong Kong 1% REER
EERLES/

Simsen Services Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Management and

Limited Bk 10,0007 7T secretarial services

ERRBEERAR TR RWERS

Tailor Success Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 Investment holding

Hong Kong 100 REER
EBRAHE/



Notes to Financial Statements

B 35 ¥R R M AL

30 April 2008 —ZEZN\EMA=+H

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. T EM B A T 2 515 ()

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up ordinary

Percentage of

establishment and share capital/  equity attributable
operations registered capital to the Group
Name BMEY/BY ERTRCHESER KEBELERE Principal activities
£ REEtE RE/EREFzEE BAL TEXH
Think Right Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$77 87.01 Investment holding
Hong Kong UED REER
RERUEE/
Il
Vigour Entertainment (Asia) Hong Kong HK$100 91 Entertainment :g ;HI
Limited ) 100/ 7T IR T
BETHRLERAR w8
0
= at
World Snooker Club 147 Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 75 Snooker operations ﬁf;
147 R EBR A BE 1,000% 7T SHEH = a
HEABEEC2BERAR People’s Republic of RMB992,428 59.4 Mining and
China ANE#992,4287 investment holding
hEARAME PRE R IR A R
BHREECLBERLE™  People’s Republic of RMB300,000 58.81 Mining
China AR #300,0007T R

hEARAAE

* the subsidiary is directly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Y ZMBARHRARREERE °

ERINMESRRIBREAKEF
NEESEAREFEETERNZ
ARBIMBAR - EFRBTIEE M
MEBARZFBERTRIBERITE -
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. ZBERE D z2Em T
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHeR T ARGER ZREEN
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows: T
2008 Group
—EBEN\F rE
Financial assets SREE
Available-
Financial assets at for-sale
fair value through Loans and financial
profit or loss  receivables assets Total
BAFEFA DE:L
BEEZ ERK gEze
tREE JE 18R 3 MEE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET THET TET
Other long term assets HhRHEE - 9,993 - 9,993
Available-for-sale investments AHHEZERE - - 1,979 1,979
Accounts receivable FEYRBR X - 147,260 - 147,260
Financial assets included in FABNFE T
prepayments, deposits and R E o e i AR 3K
other receivables LEMEE - 4,534 - 4,534
Equity investments at fair value BRRATEFARRE
through profit or loss ZBRAKE 123,147 - - 123,147
Bank trust account balances RITEFERP &84 - 155,592 - 155,592
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER - 13,613 - 13,613
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkAeFEEE - 79,843 - 79,843

123,147 410,835 1,979 535,961
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. RERE D 2/ T
CATEGORY (continued) (%)
2008 Group
—ZEENF E
Financial liabilities A =R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REBHERATE
ZEMEE
HK$’000
FHET
T
o i
Accounts payable JERTBR X 221,581 T
Financial liabilities included T AE fth B A BR K b E
in other payables and accruals EiraEcemasE 10,782 @ >
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITIEE 38,759 ﬁf;
Finance leases payable JE T Rt & A 4 834 £ al
Due to minority shareholders RAEWR 2 FIE 740
Loan from a minority shareholder —ZLEBRRER 900

273,596
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. RERE D 2/ T
CATEGORY (continued) (%)
2007 Group
—ZZtHF ES
Financial assets SREE
Available-
Financial assets at for-sale
fair value through Loans and financial
profit or loss  receivables assets Total
g BAFEFA DE:L
BEHE HHR g2
z SREE  BUER REE o3
E.’. HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
- FiE7 FE7T FET FHT
58
23 \
23 Other long term assets HhRHEE - 13,289 - 13,289
é ,§l Available-for-sale investments AHHEZERE - - 136 136
§ 3 Due from a related party EREBEATFE - 178 - 178
®a Accounts receivable FE Y B 3% - 43,792 - 43,792
Financial assets included in FABRMRE T
prepayments, deposits and REM YRR
other receivables LEREE - 2,438 - 2,438
Equity investments at fair value RATEFABRE
through profit or loss LR E 184,560 - - 184,560
Bank trust account balances RITETEP &R - 102,131 - 102,131
Pledged bank deposits BEMRTER - 3,504 - 3,594
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER - 67,889 - 67,889

184,560 233,311 136 418,007
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. BEREl D 2/ T
CATEGORY (continued) (%)
2007 Group
—ZE2tHF rE
Financial liabilities - N =Ri
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REHERAETE
ZemEE
HK$’000
FHET
Accounts payable JETBR X 134,103
Financial liabilities included T AH AR BRI &
in other payables and accruals EEHBECERARE 7,353
Promissory note R 4,036
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ FHERITEE 11,602
Finance leases payable JERT B EFHAY 1,042
Due to minority shareholders RAEIER 2 FIA 1,412
159,548
Company
AT
Financial assets TREE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETEF
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
BERRERERR EFR R ELERR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Due from subsidiaries JEULET B A R FIE 434,255 99,642
Cash and cash equivalents He kRS EFEEIER 144 120
434,399 99,762

e (W) MEL Y

[
A
A
r\,
[
A
AR
=
ﬁ
ﬁ}‘
;ﬂ_ﬁ
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. ZBERIE D 2Em T
CATEGORY (continued) (%)
Financial liabilities A =R
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZEELF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at

amortised cost amortised cost
R R 5
RAFTE =2 RAFE 2

g - 3=N TRAE
8 HK$°000 HK$'000
Z FTET FHT
8
2
Z8 Due to subsidiaries YN FNCTE @2 66,521 48,053
=8 Financial liabilities included SFE M BR B R
g g_ in other payables and accruals EtaEsemBE 1,053 704
0o
33
IShi=
52 67,574 48,757
Sa
50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 50. K EKBEE 22BN RK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES x
The Group’s major financial instruments include investments AEEZzFERITAEBERANE S
in equity securities, borrowings, accounts receivable and wE - EBE - BUERREMNERR -
accounts payable. Details of these financial instruments are ZESRMIAZHFBERBEBAW TR
disclosed in the respective notes. 5=
The main risks arising from the Group’s activities are market AEBEBXEBEA 2T ZRARATSRA
risk (including foreign exchange risk, equity price risk and % (BIEIMNERPS - BREERRERR & F)
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of ZRbg) - EERRMRBMERR - =
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of EERINETHZSERERE 2K

these risks and they are summarised below. BT -
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of an asset
and liability denominated in foreign currency will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
foreign exchange risk primarily arises (i) from sales or
purchases by operating units in currencies other than the
units’ functional currency, (ii) from its leveraged foreign
exchange business and (jii) from investing in equity shares
of foreign companies.

The directors consider the foreign exchange risk exposure
to sales or purchases in the trading segment is minimal as
all of them are denominated in USD which is pegged to the
Group’s functional currency. For foreign exchange risk
associated with the leveraged foreign exchange business,
they are managed and monitored by the relevant department
and reported on a daily basis.

0. b EE 2 B BRI

=R ()

S BE L B

SMNERBRIEAINESHEZEERBE
EBERMNEEXZSMER KB 2R
e AEBEZINERBEEZ TER
R () & FE AL AN 2 Thee 5 B PASI
ZEWETEE - (i) RERIMNEE
15 R (iii) $E SNEI R BIAKAD

EERR BEXHBRZERZIME

Rt rE  RESMBEEEHN
XEtE METR/RAREZEES
% o EERASNEXRE AR 2 HMNER,
SHARAMEERER  YBHE
| o

e (W) MEL Y

[
A
A
r\,
[
A
AR
=
ﬁ
ﬁ
;ﬂ__‘%
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 50. B iE Rk B 2 2 B M R I

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES x (48)
(continued)
Foreign exchange risk (continued) SME LB (48D

AEEBUIINEFEzEREER DR
BEREERZFBENT :

Details of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet

date were as follows:

2008 2007
Foreign —EEN\E “EERLF
% currency 000 000
g e 1 7
g—’. Other long term assets HiREEE RVMB 4,700 8,700
Z8 AR
% § Accounts receivable R ER X usD 7,475 -
é ,§l Prepayments, deposits and BRFE ek RMB 250 500
§ 3 other receivables H fth B I BR X AR
sa CAD 136 509
il
UsDh - 25
e
Equity investments at fair value BRATEFAEREL CAD 15,036 25,194
through profit or loss AR E illbs
Promissory note ERLER RVMB - 4,000
AR
Trust receipt loans SREREBER usb (3,540) -

e
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change in the
USD, RMB and CAD exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and the

Group’s equity.

=R ()

S EE LB ()

50. i AR ERE 2 B KK

TRERREHE ARG H 28R
BREZERT - £ ARKRM
AERY AREER DA EEBH
AT ) B S S R AR R o

2008 —EENEF Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

in profit before tax in equity

BB A % Al & 7

g, () g, ()

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT TERT

If HK$ weakens against USD by 5% FRTLAETLES% 1,522 1,522
If HK$ strengthens against USD by 5% & B LA ETER5% (1,522) (1,522)
If HK$ weakens against RMB by 5% ERTAAREEES% 276 276
If HK$ strengthens against RMB by 5% &B T ARBEES% (276) (276)
If HK$ weakens against CAD by 5% HBTTH T ES55% 1,897 1,897
If HK$ strengthens against CAD by 5% % /& T 5 T E 385% (1,897) (1,897)
2007 “ETHF Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
in profit before tax in equity

BR 50 Al A R

@,/ (i) #m,/ (i)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FTET

If HK$ weakens against USD by 5% ERBTTHETETS% 10 10
If HK$ strengthens against USD by 5% % /& 7T 5.3 T E 385% (10) (10)
If HK$ weakens against RMB by 5% HBTHAREEIZS% 262 262
If HK$ strengthens against RMB by 5% &B L AREERS% (262) (262)
If HK$ weakens against CAD by 5% BT INTTESS5% 5,128 5,128
If HK$ strengthens against CAD by 5%  # 78 7T 5 1T E 38 5% (5,128) (5,128)

e (W) MEL Y

[
A
A
r\,
[
A
AR
=
ﬁ
ﬁ}‘
;ﬂ__‘%
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decreases as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments
classified as equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss. The directors of the Company manage the exposure
by closely monitoring the portfolio of equity investments at
fair value through profit and loss.

The Group’s equity investments are listed on the SEHK and
TSX Venture Exchange and are valued at quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date.

0. U #E bn B3 2 B B K X

=R ()

BREEEERE

BREEBRBRERNZSR 2 ATER
RERBKERENZSFEELRZ
FmRLRER - REERAKHEE
DEABRAFEFABEEREZBRAE
éfﬁ%?féﬁx?ﬁﬁwm R o NQRIES
FEREYEREAFEFTABEERY
BARIGEHEEEERR

REEZBRARERBIM N Z 0%
BAERZMEIERLET  WIREER
FrsmEME -

The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, HESAREIZREAFERSRE
at the close of business of the nearest trading day in the XRBERE - TIESFXI 2K
year to the balance sheet date, and their respective highest FEELHEHFASREMELRKERN

and lowest points during the year were as follows: N
30 April High/low 30 April High/low
2008 2008 2007 2007
“EZENF CZBENF C—TTtH CTTtF
MA=+H B/E% WA=TH &/ B8
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index BE — BEEH 25,755 31,958/ 20,319 20,971/
19,388 15,205

Canada - S&P/TSX Venture &K — S&P/TSX

Composite Index Venture Composite Index 2,455 3,372/ 3,266 3,372/

2,340 2,291
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
5% change in the fair values of the equity investments, with
all other variables held constant and before any impact on
tax, based on their carrying amounts at the balance sheet

=R ()

IRRE R ()

50. i AR ERE 2 B KK

TREREFALMERRETE A

Rt ERBREA

AR ERNER

BZRmEE  HRARE X FES%E

B2 HURE -

date.

2008 “BENE Increase/decrease  Increase/decrease
Carrying amount in profit before tax in equity
BR B A A R
REE /m/wo Bm/md
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE7 FER FER

Investments listed in: RTFME LTz RE
Hong Kong - Held-for-trading &% — H#{EEE 8,065 403 403
Canada - Held-for-trading MEX — HEEE 115,082 5,754 5,754
2007 e 3 Increase/decrease Increase/decrease
Carrying amount in profit before tax in equity
R 750 A 1 E
RmEE B/ md m/ W
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FHET

Investments listed in: RTME EhziRE
Hong Kong - Held-for-trading &8 — #{EEE 9,162 458 458
Canada - Held-for-trading MEX —HEER 175,398 8,770 8,770
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing
bank borrowings and short term floating rate bank loans to
fund the margin financing facilities of the securities brokerage
business that are typically prime-based.

For short term floating rate bank loans, the principal risk
lies with the interest rate difference between the interbank
rate and the best lending rate. The Group mitigates the risk
by monitoring the interest rate gap between the short term
bank loans and margin financing facilities and revises the
margin financing rate if necessary. There was no such short
term bank loans as at 30 April 2008. Further details of the
Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings are disclosed in
note 33 to the financial statements.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the board of directors of the Company has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts due from
clients, dealers and borrowers. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment provisions for losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

50. I EMERE 2 BB KK

=R ()

IS0

ARBETHHREH AR EERE
AE B BTSSR E
BB ABEAREENET 8
CESEEEH FRBAERME
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E °
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[\ fe A PO [R) SR 7 B B R B B E FUM X
B2MERZE - AEEBEEEREH
RITERRARBMEBHE 2N EEHE
fREZRAR  THRF2RABRTRR
BEME - R-_TTN\FWOA=1TH "
AEBWEBEHMRITEE - FELSE
B2 RRITEEZFBRMBHRE
B 5E 33 B

FERR

AEEFAEZEERBRES AR ZY
FHRERTEBANSECHR SR
BEZERER ZFEERHAEE
BEXRMIZEEE - RBEERR
BERE  ARRzEZTGRRE—
FREEEEERE FEEHERE
B 222 Fr 2 BIFX - DARE(R BE IR B
WEFE  REENARERAZBEE
Koo WH > REBERESEEE B R
FEERRHEH 2K EEHE - A
FEMR AT AT E & B 1E R 50 2 BB
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in Hong Kong and
Philippines. At the balance sheet date, the Group has certain
concentrations of credit risk as 40% (2007: Nil) of the
Group’s accounts receivable were due from the Group’s
largest customer, within the trading segment.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed
in note 25 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flows and bank borrowings are
the general sources of funds to finance the operations of
the Group. Majority of the Group’s banking facilities are
subject to floating rates and are renewable annually. The
Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure
it has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial
obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements
applying to various licensed activities. The Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit
lines available and sufficient bank deposits to meet its short
term cash requirements. The Group’s liquidity risk
management includes making available standby banking
facilities and diversifying the funding sources.

50. i AR ERE 2 B KK
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 50. B iE Rk B 2 2 B M R I

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES & (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) B LR ()

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at BRIBEATHORTRNARGTE - A5H

the balance sheet date, based on the contracted REZHZ2BABE 2T BB
undiscounted payments, was as follows: T
Group r5E 2008
“EENE
® Less than 3 to less than 1to5 Over
3 On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
3 bR ZHEAE
g E @A t-fARm  -FIf  EEHNL @i
8 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
> g Tan TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
59
23 Accounts payable R 105,054 116,527 - - - 221,581
88 Other payables and accruals EtERERRETER 10782 - - - - 10,782
8 ":’1 Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ FtEHTEE 750 19,117 9,820 5,701 3,371 38,759
33 Finance leases payable ERBERD - 55 166 613 - 834
88 Due to minority shareholders ROBRRTE 740 - - - - 740
Loan from a minority shareholder D &ER 2 E3 - - - 900 - 900
117,326 135,699 9,986 7,214 3,371 273,596
2007
-
Less than 3 to less than 1105 Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
S ZERE
REX =@ f-EARM  -ERf  AFNE @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL ThL
Accounts payable ERER 110,262 23,841 - - - 134,103
Other payables and accruals EENERREER - 7,353 - - - 7,353
Promissory note AAEE - - 4,036 - - 4,036
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ tEBTEE - 437 1,271 5,985 3,909 11,602
Finance leases payable ERBERD - 263 15 664 - 1,042
Due to minority shareholders RHHRETAE 1,412 - - - - 1,412
111,674 31,894 5,422 6,649 3,909 159,548
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 50. i ERERE 2B RK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES R (58)

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) B R B ()

Company NG 2008

“EENE
Less than 3 to less than 1t05 Over
Ondemand  3months 12 months years 5 years Total

SR Z@REZ
REX =fif  TZfEAR -E5%  IfNL &t
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TiEn

Due to subsidiaries RNBRAE 66,521 - - - - 66,521 !
Other payables and accruals AHERRARENER - 1,053 - - - 1,083 jg ;“I
& H
~ B
66,521 1,053 - - - 67,574 L@
A %
= at
2007 iy
Rt £ 12 o
Less than 3 o less than 1105 Over
On demand Jmonths 12 months years 5 years Total
PR ZfRZE
RER =R ~+zZEARN  -ERF  IENE @t

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TRL TRL TRL TRL TRL AL

Due to subsidiaries VDG 48053 - - - - 48,053
Other payables and accruals AERENREHER - 704 - - - 704

48,053 704 - - - 48,757
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value. In
addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group licensed by the
SFC are obliged to meet the regulatory liquid capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (“FRR”).

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns with higher
levels of borrowings and the security afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions. For
licensed subsidiaries, the directors of the Company and the
corresponding responsible officers closely monitor their
liquidity position to ensure each of them maintains liquid
capital level adequate to support the activities level with
sufficient buffer to accommodate the increase in liquidity
requirements arising from potential increases in business
activities.

50. I EMERE 2 BB KK
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RERREE - U BEEERR
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 50. i AR ERE 2 B KK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES R (&)
(continued)
Capital management (continued) EXEE (B
The Group monitors capital using a net debt-to-adjusted AEBERBEBFEHLHABRERL
capital ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted capital. KERER o BIFFEHLHBRER
The Group’s policy is to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted RN EBFERCARERTE -
capital ratio below 50%. Net debt includes promissory note, AEFEZHREEEHEFEBFEEL
interest-bearing bank borrowings, finance leases payable, FEE R RIESO% AT © EISFRE
due to minority shareholders, loan from a minority BREALEE  FTERTEE BN
shareholder, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged BEMY ROBRERIBEURDH
bank deposits. Adjusted capital comprises all components EZ2EFR  BReASEHEER
of equity, less unaccrued proposed dividends. The net debt- REHFRTER - KABRELRERE
to-adjusted capital ratios as at the balance sheet dates were Rz FREAKE D - BARERES
as follows: e - NEER  ERFENEAR .
BARLEMT : “H
Group rEE "eE
2008 2007 s
—ZEENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Promissory note ORI - 4,036
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEIRITEE 38,759 11,602
Finance leases payable FERT R E A 834 1,042
Due to minority shareholders RAEIRRFRIA 740 1,412
Loan from a minority shareholder VERE ZER 900 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and &l : RE&E MBS EEHEE &
pledged bank deposits EHEFIRITER (93,456) (71,483)
Net debt B H5 - -
Total equity I& A 4 %8 436,160 297,312
Less: Proposed dividends B EERE - (4,977)
Adjusted capital KRR ER 436,160 292,335

Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FEECHABRER LXK 0% 0%
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51. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS HEERARSIE
After the balance sheet date, the Group invested R&EHE B {5: $’§ Em— R EA
approximately HK$2,470,000 in a company that operates RHEFME BELRREH‘REHERBEZ
a restaurant and provides related services in the People’s NGIE &} ?’]2 470,000/ 7T ©

Republic of China.

52. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 52. #tEM RS
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for BHEREN-—_ZEENFNA-_+—H
issue by the board of directors on 21 August 2008. KERSHERRETE -
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Five Years Financial Summary

AFPBRE

30 April 2008

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted

“EEN\FHA=TH

from the published audited financial statements.

TXAAEBRORAMBFE 2 XERE
E BERIBERESHE - IHEAE
N EEZT RS -

RESULTS E 4
Year ended 30 April
BENA=THLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENE Z—IETtF ZTERE —ITTnF TIWEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FTAET AT AT TAT
Turnover: EEE
Continuing operations BECEER 157,335 124,445 173,120 23,413 27,203
Discontinued operations BRIFEEER - - - 5,810 64,205
157,335 124,445 173,120 29,223 91,408
Profit/(loss) before tax: BREATER, (BE)
Continuing operations FRCEEE (50,903) 64,087 (86,131) (16,501) (5,295)
Discontinued operations B IFEE TS - 5,203 232,135 9,917 9,165
(50,903) 69,290 146,004 (6,584) 3,870
Tax I (2,073) (38) (1,840) 1,425 (3,549)
Profit/(loss) before B DR R A Al
minority interests L (B18) (52,976) 69,252 144,164 (5,159) 321
Minority interests DR FE S 101 (49) 49 . (506)
Profit/(loss) attributable REEM
to shareholders wmFl/ (B18) (52,875) 69,203 144,213 (5,159) (185)
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY BEE - BERLEBRERER

INTERESTS
As at 30 April
REA=+H

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

—E2ENE —ITTtF CZTTRE —IZTHF —TITWEHE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

THER FTAET AT THET TAEL

Non-current assets ERBEE 187,713 51,685 52,638 60,930 224,268

Current assets MENVE E 530,798 410,523 296,913 97,824 83,179
%

§ Total assets BELHE 718,511 462,208 349,551 158,754 307,447
°

§—. Current liabilities mEaE (267,907) (150,031) (102,535) (72,310) (75,066)

S ?; Non-current liabilities ERBERE (14,444) (14,865) (14,597) (7,775 (165,450)
=

88 Total liabilities aEesE (282,351) (164,896) (117,132 (80,085) (240,516)
NS
Sk

g 2 Minority interests LM E RS (9,810) (10) (225) - -
SR

426,350 297,302 232,194 78,669 66,931
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